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CPR POSITION FOR ADULTS (8 YEARS & OLDER)

Illustration 3-1

1. Find hand position

2. Position shoulders over hands. Compress chest 30 times,
give 2 rescue breaths, and repeat until help arrives/victim recovers.



183www.itsadisaster.net or call 1-888-999-4325

CPR POSITION FOR CHILDREN (1 - 8 YEARS)

Illustration 3-2

1. Find hand position

2. Position shoulder over hand. Compress chest 30 times,
give 2 rescue breaths, and repeat until help arrives/victim recovers.
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CPR POSITION FOR INFANTS (UNDER 1 YEAR)

Illustration 3-3

1. Find finger position

2. Position hand over fingers. Compress chest 30 times,
give 2 rescue breaths, and repeat until help arrives/victim recovers.



What are YOU gonna do about…
HEAT-RELATED ILLNESSES?

There are two major types of heat illness – HEAT EXHAUSTION and
HEAT STROKE. If heat exhaustion is left untreated it can lead to heat
stroke. Both conditions are serious, however, heat stroke is a major
medical emergency and getting victim’s body temperature cooled down is
more critical than getting fluids in their body. Heat stroke can lead to death.

Things to watch for…
Heat Cramps

Muscle pains and spasms (usually first sign that 
body’s having trouble with the heat)

Heat Exhaustion
Cool, clammy, or pale skin
Light-headed or dizzy and weak
Racing heart
Sick to the stomach (nausea)
Very thirsty or heavy sweating (sometimes)

Heat Stroke (also called Sunstroke)
Very hot and dry skin
Light-headed or dizzy
Confusion, drowsiness or fainting
Rapid breathing and rapid heartbeat
Convulsions, passes out or slips into a coma

What to do…
• Get victim to a cool or shady place and rest.
• Lightly stretch or massage muscles to relieve cramps.
• Loosen clothing around waist and neck to improve circu-

lation and remove sweaty clothes.
• Cool down victim’s body - put wet cloths on victim’s

face, neck and skin and keep adding cool water to cloth…
or if outdoors, use hose or stream. Also, fan the victim or
get inside air-conditioned place.

• Have victim sip cool water (NO alcohol – it dehydrates!)

If victim refuses water, pukes or starts to pass out:
• Call for an ambulance or call 9-1-1.

Continued on next page...
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• Put victim on their side to keep airway open.
• Keep cooling down their body by placing ice or cold

cloths on wrists, neck, armpits, and groin area (where leg
meets the hip) or keep adding water to cloths. Also fan the
victim.

• Check victim’s ABCs… Airway, Breathing, &
Circulation.

• Stay with victim until medical help arrives.

Remember, HEAT STROKE (also known as sunstroke) is a medical
emergency and can cause the victim to slip into a coma -- getting a victim’s
body temperature cooled down is more important than getting fluids in
their body!
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What are YOU gonna do about…
INFECTION?

It is important to be very careful and protect yourself against the spread of
disease or infection when caring for an open wound or a wound that is
bleeding. (Review TIPS ON REDUCING THE SPREAD OF GERMS OR
DISEASES at beginning of this section)

INFECTION
Germs are the main cause of an infection so whenever you perform first aid
on anyone (including yourself), there is always a chance of spreading
germs or diseases. All injuries - from tiny cuts to massive wounds - must
be cleaned immediately to reduce the chances of infection! And keep 
cleaning a wound until it is completely healed.

Things to watch for…
Sore or wound is red and swollen or has red streaks
Sore or wound is warm or painful
Wound may open and ooze clear or yellowish fluid
Fever or muscle aches or stiffness in the neck

What to do…
• ALWAYS wash your hands before and after caring for a

wound… even if it’s your own!
• Immediately wash minor wounds with soap and water or

rinse with hydrogen peroxide.
• Cover wound with sterile bandage or gauze -- best to

clean and change bandage daily. An open wound is a
doorway for germs and infection to get inside the body.

• Use an antibiotic cream or gel to help disinfect the wound
and kill germs. (Note: don’t use cream or gel if wound is
from a bite since it might seal wound and keep it from
draining.)

• Boost your immune system to help fight infection (like
taking astragalus, Vitamin C, garlic, mushrooms, zinc,
and a good multiple vitamin + mineral supplement, etc. -
but check with your doctor first if taking any prescription
medications).

• If infection gets worse, you may want to see a doctor.
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What are YOU gonna do about…
INFECTIOUS DISEASES?

The immune system is a complex network of cells, tissues, and organs that
work together to defend the body against attacks by foreign invaders such
as bacteria, viruses, parasites and fungi. Because the human body provides
an ideal environment for many microbes, they try to break in. It is the
immune system’s job to keep them out or, failing that, to seek out and
destroy them.10 But if a person’s immune system is weak or damaged,
germs and infection can settle in, leading to illness or possibly death.

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, infectious
diseases are the leading cause of death worldwide. And with air travel and
international trade, infectious microbes are carried across borders every
day by humans, animals, insects and contaminated foods.

Some “old” diseases like malaria and measles are found in certain parts of
the world, but “new” diseases like HIV/AIDS and West Nile are spreading
around the globe. Plus every year there’s some form of influenza and the
common cold that spreads and affects people.

There are many infectious diseases -- too many to cover here -- so we’re
only covering a common one (flu) and some emerging ones (avian flu,
SARS and staph). First, we describe each illness followed by “Things to
watch for”, then summarize “How they spread” and “What to do” for all of
them at the end. Educate yourself about threats of emerging diseases and
listen to officials for advice on how to protect yourself and your loved ones. 

Influenza (flu) is a respiratory illness caused by the influenza virus that
affects millions of people each year. Flu causes an estimated 250,000 -
500,000 deaths worldwide every year, and a major outbreak (called a 
pandemic) could increase the death toll dramatically. The best way to pre-
vent the flu is to get vaccinated each fall, especially people with weakened
immune systems. There are several antiviral drugs approved for treatment.

There are 3 types of flu viruses: A, B, and C. Influenza A viruses can infect
humans and mammals but wild birds are the natural host. Typically, wild
birds don’t get sick but A viruses can be deadly to domestic poultry (chick-
ens and turkeys). Influenza B viruses are normally found only in humans
and generally don’t cause severe widespread illness, while Influenza C
viruses cause mild illness in humans. Since strains can mutate or cross over
into other species, it could lead to widespread illness and death. The worst
influenza A outbreak on record was the Spanish flu pandemic of 1918-1919
which may have killed up to 50 million people worldwide. 
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Things to watch for (flu)…
Possible symptoms - fever (usually high), headache, sore

throat, cough, runny nose, body aches, weakness, diar-
rhea or puking (more common in children)

Possible complications - bacterial pneumonia (lung
inflammation), shortness of breath, hospitalization

Avian flu (bird flu) is a contagious viral infection that can affect all
species of birds and can cause disease in humans in rare cases. To date,
most human cases caught the flu from domestic chickens or ducks and over
50% of those patients died. There have been some documented cases of
avian flu spreading person-to-person and across species so the threat is
high and being monitored worldwide. Currently there is no vaccine avail-
able but there are some antiviral drugs available for treatment.

Things to watch for (avian flu)…
Flu-like symptoms - fever, headache, sore throat, cough,  

body aches
Possible complications - eye infections, pneumonia or 

viral pneumonia, severe breathing problems or death

SARS (Severe acute respiratory syndrome) is a viral respiratory illness
caused by a coronavirus. Normally these viruses cause mild to moderate
respiratory symptoms (like a cold) but have been linked to pneumonia in
humans (esp. people with weakened immune systems) and can cause
severe disease in animals. Over 8,000 people got sick with 774 deaths
during the global outbreak in 2003. Currently there is no vaccine available
and some antiviral drugs are being tested for treatment.

Things to watch for (SARS)…
Fever - higher than 100.4F (> 38.0C)
Possible early symptoms - chills, headache, sore throat, 

body aches, mild respiratory symptoms, diarrhea
After 2 to 7 days, one or more respiratory symptoms

appear - dry cough, shortness of breath or trouble 
breathing, pneumonia

Staph (staphylococcus aureus) are bacteria healthy people can carry on
the skin or in the nose. The bacteria can enter the body through a cut or
wound and may cause infection. According to the CDC, staph bacteria are
one of the most common causes of skin infections in the U.S. Most infec-
tions are minor (like a pimple or boil) and can be treated with antibiotics.
But staph bacteria can also cause infections in the blood, bones and lungs.
Some bacteria have become resistant to drugs (called methicillin-resistant
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Staphylococcus aureus or MRSA) and occur most often in hospitals, nurs-
ing homes and facilities where people have weakened immune systems.

Things to watch for (staph)…
Possible symptoms - skin infection that may look like

a pimple or boil and can be red, swollen, painful, or
have pus or other drainage

Severe - pneumonia, bloodstream or wound infections

How infectious diseases spread…
Most infectious diseases are spread by close person-to-person contact
primarily by touching people or things contaminated with bodily fluids
(like droplets from coughing or sneezing) -- then touching your eyes, nose,
or mouth. Body fluids (sweat, spittle, pee, etc.) from people or critters may
be infectious and some bacteria or viruses can survive on objects for days.
In extreme cases, wear gloves, mask and eye shield to protect yourself.

What to do to reduce the spread of infectious diseases…
• Wash hands often or use hand sanitizer (with at least 60%

alcohol in it) to reduce the spread of germs.
• Sick people should cover mouth and nose with tissue

when coughing or sneezing, wash hands often, and wear
a face mask around others (if extremely ill).

• Keep cuts and scrapes clean and covered until healed.
• Clean counters, tabletops, doorknobs, bathroom fixtures,

phones, linens, etc. often with a bleach solution. 
• Don’t share silverware, razors, clothing, towels, or bed-

ding and wash objects with soap and hot water.
• Wear mask and wash often if you work at a poultry farm.
• Follow doctor’s instructions and limit activities outside

home until fever and symptoms have gone away.

For more information, visit the following web sites ...

Influenza / Flu: www.cdc.gov/flu/   www.phac-aspc.gc.ca/influenza/

Avian flu: www.cdc.gov/flu/avian/   www.phac-aspc.gc.ca/influenza/ 
www.pandemicflu.gov www.who.int/topics/avian_influenza/en/

SARS: www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars  www.sars.gc.ca  www.who.int/csr/sars/en/

Staph:  www.cdc.gov/ncidod/dhqp/ar_mrsa.html

Or call the CDC Hotline at 1-800-CDC-INFO or 1-888-232-6348 (TTY).
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What are YOU gonna do about…
POISONING?

Please make sure you have the local Poison Control Center phone 
number near a telephone since many poisonings can be cared for without
the help of ambulance personnel. The people who staff Poison Control
Centers (PCCs) have access to information on most poisonous substances
and can tell you what care to give to counteract the poison.

POISON CONTROL CENTER # 1-800-222-1222 (U.S. only)

If outside U.S., write in local Poison Control Centre phone # below:
______________________________________

POISON - ABSORBED THROUGH THE SKIN

Review TERRORISM (in Section 2) for information, signs & symptoms,
and treatment on several poisonous biological and chemical agents that
could be absorbed through skin.

Things to watch for…
Reddened skin or burns
Poison on skin, clothing or in the area 
Bites or marks from insect or animal (see BITES &

STINGS)
Possible Allergic Reaction - Pain, discoloration or red-

ness at site, trouble breathing, signs of shock (pale,
cold, drowsy, weak or rapid pulse, etc.)

What to do…
• Be aware - make sure it’s safe, then ask what happened.
• Move victim to safety (away from poison), if necessary.
• Find the container (if any) or name of the poison and call

local Poison Control Center or an ambulance.
• Remove clothing that may have poison on it - don’t pull

over head - cut it off. (Seal clothing in a bag then seal that
bag in a bag - ask officials how to dispose of it later.)

• Flush skin with running water for 10 minutes.
• Wash area gently with soap and water. (Note: some chem-

ical agents don’t suggest using soap so may want to ask.)
• Monitor breathing and watch for any allergic reactions.
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POISON - INHALED BY BREATHING

Review TERRORISM (in Section 2) for information, signs & symptoms,
and treatment on several poisonous biological and chemical agents that
could be inhaled from humans’ or critters’ wet or dried body fluids, from
soil, or from powders, gas, mist, or vapors.

Things to watch for…
Strong odors or fumes
Find the source of odor or fumes (be aware of threat)
Difficulty in breathing or dizzy

What to do…
• Be aware - make sure it’s safe…then ask what happened.
• Get victim out to fresh air.
• Avoid breathing fumes - open windows & doors (if safe).
• Call Poison Control Center or an ambulance.
• If victim isn’t breathing consider doing Rescue Breathing

- but ONLY if sure poison cannot be spread person to per-
son. (see TERRORISM then BREATHING PROBLEMS)

POISON - POISONOUS PLANTS (IVY, OAK, & SUMAC)
Three common poisonous plants found in Canada and the U.S. include:

Poison ivy - can grow as a shrub or vine and is found across most of
Canada and U.S. It has white or cream-colored berries (or flowers in
Spring) and leaves are usually three leaflets to a stem but vary in color,
size, shape and texture around the world. [see illustration 3-4 on page 194]

Poison oak - can grow as a shrub or vine and found throughout the West
and Southwest (very common in Oregon and California). It also varies
widely in shapes and colors but usually has distinctive shape of an oak leaf
and red fuzzy berries. The leaves usually come in leaflets of three to a stem
but can be in groups of five or more. It is best to learn what it looks like
where you live. [see illustration 3-5 on page 194]

Poison sumac - is a tall shrub or small tree and mostly lives in standing
water (like swamps and peat bogs). It has whitish green berries and bright
green, pointy leaves that grow 6 to 12 leaves in pairs along both sides of
each stem plus one leaf on each tip. [see illustration 3-6 on page 195]

All 3 of these plants have a sap called urushiol [oo-roo-she-ol] which is a
sticky, colorless oil that stains things black when exposed to air. This sap
is in the leaves, berries, stems and roots of all 3 types and can stick around
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a long time if the sap stays dry (which is why you need to rinse off what-
ever gets exposed - yourself, pets, clothing, shoes and laces, tools or 
camping stuff.) Never burn these plants since smoke can carry the oil and
irritate skin, nose or lungs.

The rash is caused by your body’s reaction to this oil and can show up as
quickly as a few hours or take several days ... or never, in some cases, since
some people don’t have reactions to urushiol. It can irritate pets’ skin too.

Note: the rash itself is not contagious but the OIL (urushiol) is what is
transferred by hands, fingers, clothing or fur!! Make sure you wash your
hands after touching the rash to avoid spreading any urushiol.

Things to watch for…
Inflamed red rash
Extremely itchy skin or burning feeling
Blisters
Swelling or fever
Allergic reactions (weakness, dizziness, swelling in 

mouth or lips, trouble breathing or swallowing)

What to do…
• It is CRITICAL to wash affected area with soap and run-

ning water then apply rubbing alcohol using cotton balls
on area to remove any excess oil as quickly as possible.

• Immediately and carefully remove and wash any clothing
and/or shoes that got exposed to the poison. (Remember
to wash pets, tools or anything else exposed to oil too.)

• If a rash or sores develop, use calamine lotion or baking
soda paste several times a day on area.

• Take an antihistamine to reduce reaction (read label first).
• If condition gets worse or spreads onto large areas of

body, eyes or face, see a doctor.

To relieve pain from poison ivy, oak, or sumac:

Baking soda - Make a paste using 3 parts baking soda with 1 part water
and apply on rash.

Jewelweed - Studies indicate a plant that grows near poison ivy called
jewelweed (has tiny, orange-yellow, horn-shaped flowers with reddish or
white spots) can be used directly on area that brushed against ivy. Crush
juicy stems in your hands and apply to the area - even if there’s no rash yet
since it may help reduce inflammation. [see illustration 3-7 on page 195]
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Illustration 3-4
Poison Ivy

Illustration 3-5
Poison Oak
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Illustration 3-6
Poison Sumac

Illustration 3-7
Jewelweed



POISON - SWALLOWED

See TERRORISM (in Section 2) for information, signs & symptoms, and
treatment on several poisonous biological and chemical agents that could
be swallowed from eating or drinking something contaminated.

Things to watch for…
Burns on the mouth, tongue and lips
Stomach pains
Open medicine cabinet; spilled or open containers
Difficulty breathing
Convulsions or seizures
Weakness or dizziness
Passed out

What to do…
• Stay calm and find out exactly what, how much, and how

long ago it was swallowed.
• Call Poison Control Center (1-800-222-1222 in the U.S.)

or an ambulance and have bottle or container handy (if
possible).

• NEVER give victim anything to eat or drink unless told
to do so by Poison Control Center or a Medical profes-
sional!!

• If victim pukes, lay them on their side to keep airway
open. Save a sample of the vomit IF the poison is
unknown so the hospital can try to identify it.

• If victim isn’t breathing consider doing Rescue Breathing
- but ONLY if sure poison cannot be spread person to per-
son. (Check with Poison Control Center. Also review
TERRORISM then BREATHING PROBLEMS)

The American Academy of Pediatrics recommends parents no longer use
syrup of ipecac (pronounced ip’- î - kak) as a poison treatment intervention
in the home. Immediately contact local Poison Control Center for help.

If you decide to keep a few 1 ounce bottles in your First Aid Kit ... use
ONLY on the advice of a Medical professional or the Poison Control
Center! Syrup of ipecac is sold by most pharmacies without a prescription
and used to induce vomiting (makes you puke) -- again, use only if
instructed to do so. 
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What are YOU gonna do about…
SHOCK?

Things to watch for…
Pale, cold, and clammy skin
Rapid heartbeat but weak pulse
Quick and shallow breathing
Dizziness or confusion
Bluish color on lips and fingertips or nails
Sick to their stomach or puking 
Intense thirst

What to do…
• Call for an ambulance.
• Look for injuries and watch ABCs… Airway, Breathing

& Circulation.
• Position victim using the following tips:

alert and awake - place victim flat on their back with legs 
raised slightly 

passed out or puking - place victim on side to keep airway 
open

• Loosen any tight or restrictive clothing.
• Cover victim with a blanket or towel.
• Talk calmly to victim until help arrives (whether they are

alert or not!)
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What are YOU gonna do about…
A STROKE?

According to the American Stroke Association, about 700,000 Americans
suffer strokes each year and almost 1/4 of those victims die making stroke
the #3 killer in the U.S. Canada reports about 40,000-50,000 new strokes
annually killing about 16,000 Canadians making it the 4th leading cause of
death according to the Heart and Stroke Foundation of Canada.

A stroke (or “brain attack”) occurs when oxygen and vital nutrients carried
by blood are cut off causing brain cells to die. It’s cut off because…

…a blood vessel is blocked in the neck or brain (by a blood clot
or narrowing of an artery) -- called an ischemic [is-KEM-ik]
stroke (causes about 83% of strokes)

... or ...
…a blood vessel bursts or leaks -- called hemorrhagic [hem-o-

RAJ-ik] stroke or bleeder (causes 17% of strokes)

NOTE: You only have 2 - 6 hours maximum to stop permanent brain
damage from a stroke - so get to a hospital as quickly as possible (within 3
hours is best!) 

Things to watch for…
Sudden confusion, trouble speaking or understanding
Loss of muscle control on one side of the body
Loss of balance, stumbling, dizziness or fainting
Different sized pupils (one pupil small / one enlarged)
Severe headache
Blurred or double-vision in one or both eyes
Shock (pale, cold or clammy, weak or rapid pulse, etc.)
Transient ischemic attack (TIA / mini-stroke) - a

minor or warning stroke - risk of major stroke is high

What to do…
• Call 9-1-1 for an ambulance.
• Get victim to lie back with head raised (put pillows or

blankets under head and shoulders so partially sitting up).
• Loosen any tight or restrictive clothing.
• See if there are any other injuries.
• If victim is drooling or having problems swallowing,

place them on their side to keep the airway open.
• Stay with victim until medical help arrives.
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What are YOU gonna do about…
TOOTH INJURIES?

Millions of tooth injuries happen every year - many from sports injuries
or accidents, but also from chomping down on hard objects.

Things to watch for…
Tooth or teeth (or pieces if chipped)
Object caught between teeth or stuck in gum
Redness, swelling or bleeding

What to do…
• Get to a dentist as quickly as possible. 

If a permanent tooth is knocked out:
• Hold tooth by the crown or sides (not the root) and, if

dirty, gently rinse with milk or water (but don’t scrub it).
• If possible, gently insert tooth back into socket then hold

in place or carefully bite down on gauze or cloth. If you
can’t get tooth back in socket, put it in milk (or water). 

• Get medical attention immediately since many permanent
teeth can be saved if replaced within 15-30 minutes!

If tooth is chipped, cracked or broken:
• Rinse damaged area with warm water.
• Apply a cold compress on area to reduce swelling.
• Call your dentist as soon as possible.

Things you should NOT do…
• DO NOT touch, scrub or hold the root or ligaments.
• DO NOT use teeth to open bottles or tear things and avoid

chewing hard candy, ice, etc.
• DO NOT leave a knocked out tooth exposed to air or it

will dry out - put it in milk (or water as a last resort!)

Things you SHOULD do…
• Wear a mouth guard and protective gear when playing

sports and always wear your seat belt when in a vehicle. 
• When a tooth injury occurs, go see a dentist.
• Practice good dental habits - brush & floss daily and rinse

toothbrush with hydrogen peroxide weekly to kill germs.
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Section 4

Emergency Contact 
Names & Numbers
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ABOUT THE AMERICAN RED CROSS:

Extracted from ARC’s Disaster Services web site as of October 2006:

When a disaster threatens or strikes, the Red Cross provides shelter, food,
and health and mental health services to address basic human needs. In
addition to these services, the core of Red Cross disaster relief is the assis-
tance given to individuals and families affected by disaster to enable them
to resume their normal daily activities independently.

The Red Cross also feeds emergency workers, handles inquiries from con-
cerned family members outside the disaster area, provides blood and blood
products to disaster victims, and helps those affected by disaster to access
other available resources.

All Red Cross assistance is given free of charge, made possible by the
generous contribution of people’s time, money, and skills.

CONTACTING YOUR LOCAL AMERICAN RED CROSS:
There are a few different ways of finding your local Red Cross Chapter:

If you have access to the Internet, you can check their web site 

www.redcross.org
On the left hand side of the screen is a place to type in your zip code 

and click on FIND button

… or …

You can browse through a list of local American Red Cross websites
by clicking on link

… or …

Check your local telephone book in the white pages under BUSINESS
LISTINGS for the American Red Cross.

Write in your local ARC office here for future reference:

Local American Red Cross Address is:

___________________________________________

Telephone #: ________________________________
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ABOUT THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
HOMELAND SECURITY

Extracted from DHS’ web site as of April 2007:

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) has three primary missions: 

• Lead the unified national effort to secure America 
• Prevent and deter terrorist attacks and protect against

and respond to threats and hazards to the nation 
• Ensure safe and secure borders, welcome lawful 

immigrants and visitors, and promote the free-flow of
commerce. 

DHS gives state and local officials one primary contact instead of many, an
important advantage when it comes to matters related to training, equip-
ment, planning, exercises and other critical homeland security needs. It
manages federal grant programs for enhancing the preparedness of First
Responders and infrastructure. DHS also set standards for state and local
preparedness activities and equipment.

DHS is made up of several major components:

Directorate for National Protection and Programs - works to advance
DHS's risk-reduction mission with an integrated approach that 
encompasses both physical and virtual threats and their associated human
elements. NPP components focus on cyber security and communications,
critical infrastructure protection, etc.

Domestic Nuclear Detection Office - jointly staffed office established to
improve the Nation’s capability to detect and report unauthorized attempts
to import, possess, store, develop, or transport nuclear or radiological
material for use against the Nation, and to further enhance this capability
over time.

Science and Technology - coordinates efforts in research and develop-
ment, including preparing for and responding to the full range of terrorist
threats involving chemical, biological, radiological, nuclear, and explosive
attacks.  

Some other key agencies and components include Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA), Customs and Border Protection (CBP),
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Office of Intelligence and
Analysis, Transportation Security Administration (TSA), the U.S. Coast
Guard, and the U.S. Secret Service. To learn more and to find some useful
links for businesses and citizens, visit www.dhs.gov
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ABOUT THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA):

Extracted from FEMA’s web site as of April 2007:

FEMA's continuing mission within DHS is to lead the effort to prepare the
nation for all hazards and effectively manage federal response and recov-
ery efforts following any national incident. FEMA also initiates proactive
mitigation activities, trains first responders, and manages the National
Flood Insurance Program. 

To learn more about each Region, visit  www.fema.gov (click on “About
Us”, then “Contact Us”)

FEMA REGIONAL OFFICES
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FEMA Region I 
(serving CT, MA, ME, NH, RI, VT)
6th Floor 
99 High Street
Boston, MA 02110

FEMA Region II 
(serving NJ, NY, PR, VI)
Suite 1337
26 Federal Plaza
New York, NY 10278

FEMA Region III 
(serving DC, DE, MD, PA,VA, WV) 
One Independence Mall, 6th Floor
615 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA 19106 

FEMA Region IV
(serving AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN) 
3003 Chamblee Tucker Road
Atlanta, GA 30341

FEMA Region V
(serving IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI)
6th Floor
536 South Clark Street
Chicago, IL 60605

FEMA Region VI
(serving AR, LA, NM, OK, TX) 
Federal Regional Center 
800 North Loop 288
Denton, TX 76209 

FEMA Region VII
(serving IA, KS, MO, NE) 
Suite 300
9221 Ward Parkway
Kansas City, MO 64114

FEMA Region VIII 
(serving CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY) 
Denver Federal Center
Building 710, Box 25267
Denver, CO 80225 

FEMA Region IX 
(serving AZ, CA, HI, NV, TERRITORIES) 
1111 Broadway, Suite 1200
Oakland, CA 94607

FEMA Region X 
(serving AK, ID, OR, WA) 
Federal Regional Center
130 228th St., SW
Bothell, WA 98021



FEMA FOR KIDS:
FEMA has a fun web site for kids to learn about disasters, so check out
their information and games for kids of all ages at www.fema.gov/kids

FEMA PARTNERS:
Emergency management is not the result of one government agency alone.
FEMA works with many government, non-profit and private sector agen-
cies to assist the public in preparing for, responding to, and recovering
from disasters. These players make up the emergency response “team.”

• Local Emergency Management Agencies
• State & Territory Emergency Management Offices
• National Emergency Management Organizations
• Federal-level Partners
• Partnerships with the Private Sector 

In addition to these partners, FEMA’s Global Emergency Management
System provides access to a wide variety of emergency management and
disaster related web sites. 

DETAILED INFORMATION ABOUT FEMA PARTNERS:
• LOCAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCIES

Even the largest, most widespread disasters require a local response. Local
emergency management programs are the heart of the nation’s emergency
management system. FEMA supports them by offering training courses for
emergency managers and firefighters, with DHS funding for emergency
planning and equipment, by conducting exercises for localities to practice
response, and by promoting ways to minimize disasters’ effects. FEMA
also builds partnerships with mayors, county boards, Tribal governments
and officials who share responsibility for emergency management. 

Visit your City/County web site to see if there’s a link to your Emergency
Management, Emergency Services or Homeland Security Office or check
the Blue Government pages in your city or county phone book.

• STATE & TERRITORY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCIES

Just like local EMAs above, every state emergency management agency is
an integral part of the emergency management system. State and Territory
offices coordinate federal, state, and local resources for mitigation, pre-
paredness, response and recovery operations for citizens with support from
FEMA and it’s partners. The next 4 pages list all State and U.S. Territory
Emergency Management offices and agencies in alphabetical order.
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STATE & TERRITORY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OFFICES

Alabama Emergency Management Agency
P. O. Drawer 2160
Clanton, AL 35046-2160
(205) 280-2200   FAX 205 280-2495
http://ema.alabama.gov

Alaska Division of Homeland Security and
Emergency Management

P. O. Box 5750
Fort Richardson, AK 99505-5750
(907) 428-7000  FAX 907 428-7009
www.ak-prepared.com

American Samoa Territorial Emergency
Management Coordination (TEMCO)

American Samoa Government
P. O. Box 1086
Pago Pago, American Samoa 96799
011 (684) 699-6415  FAX 684 699-6414

Arizona Div of Emergency Management
5636 East McDowell Road
Phoenix, AZ 85008
(602) 244-0504  FAX 602 231-6206
www.dem.state.az.us

Arkansas Dept of Emergency Management
P. O. Box 758
Conway, AR 72033
(501) 730-9750  FAX 501 730-9754
www.adem.state.ar.us

California Governor’s Office of Emergency
Services

3650 Schriever Avenue
Mather, CA 95655
(916) 845-8510  FAX 916 845-8444
www.oes.ca.gov

Colorado Div of Emergency Management 
9195 East Mineral Avenue, Suite 200
Centennial, CO 80112
(720) 852-6600  FAX 720 852-6750
www.dola.state.co.us/oem/oemindex.htm

Connecticut Department of Emergency
Management & Homeland Security

25 Sigourney Street, 6th Floor
Hartford, CT 06106
(860) 256-0800  FAX 860 256-0815
www.ct.gov/demhs

Delaware Emergency Management Agency
165 Brick Store Landing Road
Smyrna, DE 19977
(302) 659-3362  FAX 302 659-6855
www.state.de.us/dema/default.shtml

District of Columbia Emergency
Management Agency

2720 Martin Luther King Jr. Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20032
(202) 727-6161  FAX 202 673-2290
http://dcema.dc.gov 

Florida Division of Emergency
Management

2555 Shumard Oak Blvd.
Tallahassee, FL 32399
(850) 413-9900  FAX 850 488-1016
www.floridadisaster.org

Georgia Emergency Management Agency
P. O. Box 18055
Atlanta, GA 30316-0055
(404) 635-7000  FAX 404 635-7005
www.state.ga.us/GEMA

Guam Homeland Security / Office of Civil
Defense 

221B Chalan Palasyo
Agana Heights, Guam 96910
011 (671) 475-9600  FAX 671 477-3727
www.guamhs.org

Hawaii State Civil Defense
3949 Diamond Head Road
Honolulu, HI 96816
(808) 733-4300  FAX 808 733-4287
www.scd.state.hi.us

Idaho Bureau of Homeland Security
4040 Guard Street, Building 600
Boise, ID 83705
(208) 422-3040  FAX 208 422-3044
www.bhs.idaho.gov

Illinois Emergency Management Agency
2200 South Dirksen Parkway
Springfield, IL 62703
(217) 782-7860  FAX 217 782-2589
Tollfree 1-800-782-7860
www.state.il.us/iema 



Indiana Department of Homeland Security
Room E208
302 W. Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-3980  FAX 317 232-3895
www.in.gov/dhs

Iowa Homeland Security & Emergency
Management

7105 N.W. 70th Avenue
Camp Dodge, Building W-4
Johnston, IA 50131
(515) 725-3231  FAX 515 725-3260
www.iowahomelandsecurity.org

Kansas Div of Emergency Management
2800 S.W. Topeka Boulevard
Topeka, KS 66611-1287
(785) 274-1409  FAX 785 274-1426
www.kansas.gov/kdem

Kentucky Emergency Management
EOC Building
100 Minuteman Parkway
Frankfort, KY 40601-6168
(502) 607-1682  FAX 502 607-1614
Tollfree 1-800-255-2587
http://kyem.ky.gov 

Louisiana Homeland Security &
Emergency Preparedness

7667 Independence Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806
(225) 925-7500  FAX 225 925-7501
www.loep.state.la.us

Maine Emergency Management Agency
72 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333
(207) 624-4400  FAX 207 278-3178
www.state.me.us/mema

Commonweath of the Northern Mariana
Islands Emergency Management Office

Office of the Director
P. O. Box 10007
Saipan, MP 96950
(670) 322-9529  FAX 670 322-9500
www.cnmiemo.gov.mp

National Disaster Management Office
Office of the Chief Secretary
P. O. Box 15
Majuro, Republic of the Marshall Islands
96960
011 (692) 625-5181  FAX 692 625-6896

Maryland Emergency Management Agency
Camp Fretterd Military Reservation
5401 Rue Saint Lo Drive
Reistertown, MD 21136
(410) 517-3600  FAX 410 517-3610
Tollfree 1-877-MEMA-USA
www.mema.state.md.us

Massachusetts Emergency Management
Agency

400 Worcester Road
Framingham, MA 01702-5399
(508) 820-2000  FAX 508 820-2030
www.state.ma.us/mema

Michigan Emergency Management & 
Homeland Security Division

4000 Collins Road
Lansing, MI 48910
(517) 333-5042  FAX 517 333-4987
www.michigan.gov/emhsd

National Disaster Control Officer
Federated States of Micronesia
P. O. Box PS-53
Kolonia, Pohnpei - Micronesia 96941
011 (691) 320-8815  FAX 691 320-2785

Minnesota Homeland Security and
Emergency Management (HSEM)

Department of Public Safety
444 Cedar Street, Suite 223
St. Paul, MN 55101-6223
(651) 201-7400  FAX 651 296-0459
www.hsem.state.mn.us 

Mississippi Emergency Management
Agency

P. O. Box 5644
Pearl, MS 39288-5644
(601) 933-6362  FAX 601 933-6800
Tollfree 1-800-222-MEMA (6362)
www.msema.org

Missouri Emergency Management Agency
P. O. Box 116
Jefferson City, MO 65102
(573) 526-9100  FAX 573 634-7966
http://sema.dps.mo.gov 

Montana Disaster and Emergency Services
P. O. Box 4789
Helena, MT 59604-4789
(406) 841-3911  FAX 406 841-3965
http://dma.mt.gov/DES/ 
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Nebraska Emergency Management Agency
1300 Military Road
Lincoln, NE 68508-1090
(402) 471-7421  FAX 402 471-7433
www.nema.ne.gov 

Nevada Division of Emergency
Management

2478 Fairview Drive
Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 687-0300  FAX 775 687-0322
www.dem.state.nv.us 

New Hampshire Department of Safety
Bureau of Emergency Management
Homeland Security and Emergency

Management
33 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03305
(603) 271-2231  FAX 603 225-7341
www.nh.gov/safety/divisions/bem/

New Jersey Office of Emergency
Management

P. O. Box 7068
West Trenton, NJ 08628-0068
(609) 538-6050  FAX 609 538-0345
www.nj.gov/njoem

New Mexico Office of Emergency
Management

P. O. Box 1628
Santa Fe, NM 87504-1628
(505) 476-9600  FAX 505 476-9650
www.dps.nm.org/divisions/emergency

New York State Emergency Management
Office

Building 22, Suite 101
1220 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12226
(518) 292-2200  FAX 518 322-4978
www.semo.state.ny.us

North Carolina Emergency Management
4713 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-4713
(919) 733-3867  FAX 919 733-7554
www.ncem.org

North Dakota Department of Emergency
Services

P. O. Box 5511
Bismarck, ND 58506-5511
(701) 328-8100  FAX 701 328-8181
www.nd.gov/des

Ohio Emergency Management Agency
2855 West Dublin-Granville Road
Columbus, OH 43235-2206
(614) 889-7150  FAX 614 889-7183
www.ema.ohio.gov

Oklahoma Department of Emergency
Management

2401 Lincoln Blvd, Suite C51
Oklahoma City, OK 73105
(405) 521-2481  FAX 405 521-4053
www.ok.gov/OEM

Oregon Emergency Management
P. O. Box 14370
Salem, OR 97309-5062
(503) 378-2911  FAX 503 373-7833
http://egov.oregon.gov/OOHS/OEM/

Palau NEMO Coordinator
Office of the President
P. O. Box 100
Koror, Republic of Paulau 96940
011 (680) 488-2422  FAX 680 488-3312

Pennsylvania Emergency Management
Agency

2605 Interstate Drive
Harrisburg, PA 17110
(717) 651-2001  FAX 717 651-2040
www.pema.state.pa.us

Puerto Rico Emergency Management
Agency

P. O. Box 966597
San Juan, PR 00906-6597
(787) 724-0124  FAX 787 725-4244 

Rhode Island Emergency Management
Agency

645 New London Avenue
Cranston, RI 02920
(401) 946-9996  Fax 401 944-1891
www.riema.ri.gov

South Carolina Emergency Management
2779 Fish Hatchery Road
West Columbia, SC 29172
(803) 737-8500  FAX 803 737-8570
www.scemd.org

South Dakota Office of Emergency
Management

118 West Capitol Avenue
Pierre, SD 57501
(605) 773-3231  FAX 605 773-3580
http://oem.sd.gov 
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Tennessee Emergency Management Agency
3041 Sidco Drive
Nashville, TN 37204
(615) 741-0001  FAX 615 242-9635
www.tnema.org 

Texas Department of Public Safety
Division of Emergency Management
P. O. Box 4087
Austin, TX 78773-0220
(512) 424-2138  FAX 512 424-2444
www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/pages

Utah Division of Homeland Security
Room 1110, State Office Building
Salt Lake City, UT 84114
(801) 538-3400  FAX 801 538-3770
http://homelandsecurity.utah.gov 

Vermont Emergency Management
103 South Main Street
Waterbury, VT 05671-2101
(802) 244-8721  FAX 802 244-8655
www.dps.state.vt.us/vem

Virgin Islands Territorial Emergency
Management Agency-VITEMA

2-C Contant, A-Q Building
St. Croix, VI 00820
(340) 774-2244  FAX 340 774-1491

Virginia Dept of Emergency Management
10501 Trade Court
Richmond, VA 23236-3713
(804) 897-6500  FAX 804 897-6506
www.vaemergency.com 

Washington State Military Department
Emergency Management Division
Building 20, M/S: TA-20
Camp Murray, WA 98430-5122
(253) 512-7000  FAX 253 512-7200
www.emd.wa.gov

West Virginia Div of Homeland Security
& Emergency Management

Building 1, Room EB-80
1900 Kanawha Blvd. East
Charleston, WV 25305-0360
(304) 558-5380  FAX 304 344-4538
www.wvdhsem.gov

Wisconsin Emergency Management
P. O. Box 7865
Madison, WI 53707-7865
(608) 242-3232  FAX 608 242-3247
http://emergencymanagement.wi.gov

Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
122 West 25th Street
Herschler Bldg, 1st Floor East
Cheyenne, WY 82002
(307) 777-4663  FAX 307 635-6017
http://wyohomelandsecurity.state.wy.us 

As of 7-Dec-2006 (per FEMA web site)
Fedhealth verified info & links:17-Apr-2007
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• NATIONAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONS

National Emergency Management Association (NEMA) - membership
includes State EM Directors.   www.nemaweb.org

International Association of Emergency Managers (IAEM) - member-
ship includes local emergency managers.   www.iaem.com

• FEMA’S FEDERAL-LEVEL PARTNERS

Numerous federal agencies and departments are partners in the nation’s
emergency management system. Before a disaster, they participate in train-
ing exercises and conduct a variety of activities to help the nation prepare
for disasters. For example, the Federal Communications Commission and
the Commerce Department's National Weather Service provide on-going



warning and disaster tracking services. During a catastrophic disaster,
FEMA coordinates the federal response, working with 28 federal partners
and the American Red Cross to provide emergency food and water, med-
ical supplies and services, search and rescue operations, transportation
assistance, environmental assessment, and more. The National Disaster
Medical System is a partnership set up to provide emergency medical serv-
ices in a disaster, involving FEMA, Department of Health and Human
Services, Department of Defense, the Veterans Administration, as well as
public and private hospitals across the country.

• FEMA PARTNERSHIPS WITH THE PRIVATE SECTOR

FEMA encourages all sectors of society -- from business and industry to
volunteer organizations -- to work together in disaster preparation,
response and recovery. (Please review APPENDIX A and B.)

NATIONAL RESPONSE PLAN

DHS’s National Response Plan establishes a comprehensive all-hazards
approach to enhance the ability of the U.S. to manage domestic incidents.
The plan incorporates best practices and procedures from incident man-
agement disciplines -- homeland security, emergency management, law
enforcement, firefighting, public works, public health, responder and
recovery worker health and safety, emergency medical services, and the
private sector -- and integrates them into a unified structure. The NRP
(along with the National Incident Management System) forms the basis
of how the federal government coordinates with state, local, and tribal
governments and the private sector during incidents.

The National Response Plan (NRP) works to help:
• Save lives and protect the health and safety of the public, responders, and

recovery workers;
• Ensure security of the homeland;
• Prevent imminent incident, including acts of terrorism, from occurring;
• Protect and restore critical infrastructure and key resources;
• Conduct law enforcement investigations to resolve incident, apprehend

perpetrators, and collect and preserve evidence;
• Protect property and mitigate damages and impacts to individuals, com-

munities, and the environment;
• Facilitate recovery of individuals, families, businesses, governments, and

the environment.

To learn more visit www.dhs.gov/xprepresp/publications/ (for National
Response Plan) and www.fema.gov/emergency/nims/ (for the National
Incident Management System [NIMS]).
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ABOUT THE CANADIAN RED CROSS:

Extracted from the CRC’s Disaster Services web site as of October 2006:

Canadian Red Cross helps people affected by emergencies and disasters --
situations ranging from a housefire to a flood that disrupts an entire region
of the country. Following a disaster, Red Cross works with governments
and other humanitarian organizations to provide for people's basic needs
like food, clothing, shelter, first aid, emotional support and family reunifi-
cation. The specific services offered will be based on the community's
needs and the role that Red Cross has in the local disaster response plan. 

All Red Cross assistance is provided free of charge and is made possible
because of the generosity of financial donors and the volunteers who 
provide time and expertise.

CONTACTING YOUR LOCAL CANADIAN RED CROSS:

There are a few different ways of finding your local Red Cross office:

If you have access to the Internet, you can check their national web site

www.redcross.ca
Click on “Contact Us” then click on your “Zone” for list of offices

… or call …

Canadian Red Cross
170 Metcalfe Street, Suite 300

Ottawa, Ontario K2P 2P2
Phone: 613.740.1900  Fax: 613.740.1911

To Donate by Phone: 1-800-418-1111

… or …

Check your local telephone book in the white pages 
for the Canadian Red Cross.

Write in your local office here for future reference:

Local Canadian Red Cross Address is:  

___________________________________________

Telephone #: ________________________________
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ABOUT PUBLIC SAFETY CANADA

Extracted from PSEPC web site as of April 2007:

As Canada’s lead department for public safety, Public Safety Canada (PS)
works with five agencies and three review bodies. They are united in a sin-
gle portfolio and report to the same minister. The result is better integration
among federal organizations dealing with national security, emergency
management, law enforcement, corrections, crime prevention and borders.

PS AGENCIES:
Canada Border Services Agency (CBSA) - facilitates legitimate cross-
border traffic and supports economic development while stopping people
and goods that pose a potential threat to Canada.

Canadian Security Intelligence Service (CSIS) - investigates and reports
on activities that may pose a threat to the security of Canada. CSIS also
provides security assessments.

Correctional Service Canada (CSC) - is responsible for managing
offenders sentenced to two years or more in federal correctional institutions
and under community supervision.

National Parole Board (NPB) - is an independent decision making body
that grants, denies or revokes parole for inmates in federal prisons. NPB
helps protect society by facilitating the timely reintegration of offenders
into society as law-abiding citizens. 

Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) - enforces Canadian laws, 
prevents crime and maintains peace, order and security.

PS MANDATE:
To keep Canadians safe from a range of risks such as natural disasters,
crime and terrorism. To do this, Public Safety Canada coordinates and sup-
ports the efforts of federal organizations ensuring national security and the
safety of Canadians. PS also work with other levels of government, first
responders, community groups, the private sector and other nations. 

PS PROGRAMS:
• EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
PS is responsible for developing and implementing federal policies for
emergency management. The all-hazards and multidisciplinary approach
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creates a unified, federal system for managing emergencies of a national
magnitude. Some areas of responsibilities include: Critical infrastructure
protection, Cyber security, Disaster mitigation, Emergency preparedness,
Response and Recovery.

• NATIONAL SECURITY
PS runs the Government Operations Centre, which monitors potential
threats to the national interest around-the-clock. The Centre can also
provide coordination and support in the event of a national emergency. 

• LAW ENFORCEMENT
PS helps law enforcement agencies put in place the necessary policies and
technology for better data and intelligence sharing and contributes funds
for policing services in over 300 First Nations and Inuit communities in
partnership with provincial and territorial governments. 

• CORRECTIONS
PS leads the development of federal policy and legislation for Canada's
correctional system in order to safely reintegrate offenders into the 
community.

• CRIME PREVENTION
PS works with volunteer groups, governments and businesses to support
local solutions to crime and victimization.

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS IN CANADA:
• CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROTECTION
Critical infrastructure consists of physical and information technology
facilities, networks, services and assets that are critical to the well-being,
operations and continuity of our country. PS funds research and work with
private sector partners to protect national critical infrastructure. 

The Canadian Cyber Incident Response Centre (CCIRC) is responsible for
monitoring threats and coordinating the national response to any cyber
security incident. Its focus is the protection of national critical infrastruc-
ture against cyber incidents.

• FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS
PS administers the Joint Emergency Preparedness Program (JEPP) and  the
Disaster Financial Assistance Arrangements (DFAA). JEPP funding
ensures communities have response skills and equipment in place to deal
with emergency situations of any type. DFAA shares the costs of respond-
ing to and recovering from disasters when the costs of doing so exceed the
fiscal capacity of provincial and territorial governments.
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• TRAINING AND EDUCATION
The Canadian Emergency Management College in Ontario provides train-
ing and educational resources for emergency managers. And the National
Exercise Program (NEP) consists of training courses and operation centre
exercises that hone the National Emergency Response System.

• PUBLIC INFORMATION
Public awareness campaigns provide Canadians with information needed
to become better prepared for an emergency. Public Safety Canada man-
ages Emergency Preparedness Week every May and offers various guides
and publications online for individuals, educators and businesses.

• PARTNERS
During a major disaster or emergency, PS works closely with various
Government of Canada departments, agencies and Provincial and
Territorial Emergency Management Organizations (listed below in alpha-
betical order).

PROVINCIAL & TERRITORIAL
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONS (EMOS)
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Alberta 
Emergency Management Alberta
Alberta Municipal Affairs
16th Floor, Commerce Place
10155 - 102nd Street 
Edmonton, AB  T5J 4L4
Tel: (780) 422-9000  Fax: (780) 422-1549
Tollfree 310-0000  (in Alberta)
www.municipalaffairs.gov.ab.ca/ema

British Columbia
Provincial Emergency Program
Headquarters
P. O. Box 9201 Station Prov. Govt. 
Victoria, BC  V8W 9J1 
Tel: (250) 952-4913  Fax: (250) 952-4888
www.pep.bc.ca

PEP Central Region
1255 - D Dalhousie Drive
Kamloops, BC V2C 5Z5
(250) 371-5240  Fax: (250) 371-5246

PEP North East Region
3235 Westwood Drive
Prince George, BC V2N 1S4
(250) 612-4172  Fax: (250) 612-4171

PEP North West Region
Suite 1B - 3215 Eby Street
Terrace, BC V8G 2X8
(250) 615-4800  Fax: (250) 615-4817

PEP South East Region
403 Vernon Street
Nelson, BC V1L 4E6
(250) 354-5904  Fax: (250) 354-6561

PEP South West Region
14275 - 96th Avenue
Surrey, BC V3V 7Z2
(604) 586-4390  Fax: (604) 586-4334

PEP Vancouver Island Region
455 Boleskine Road
Victoria, BC V8Z 1E7
(250) 952-5848  Fax: (250) 952-4304

Manitoba
Manitoba Emergency Measures

Organization
405 Broadway Avenue, Room 1525 
Winnipeg, MB  R3C 3L6 
Tel: (204) 945-4772  Fax: (204) 945-4620 
Tollfree 1-888-267-8298
www.ManitobaEMO.ca



New Brunswick
New Brunswick Emergency Measures

Organization
Department of Public Safety 
P. O. Box 6000
Fredericton, NB   E3B 5H1 
Tel: (506) 453-2133  Fax: (506) 453-5513
www.gnb.ca/cnb/emo-omu/index-e.asp

Newfoundland and Labrador
Emergency Measures Organization
Dept of Municipal and Provincial Affairs
P. O. Box 8700 
St. John's, NL A1B 4J6
Tel: (709) 729-3703  Fax: (709) 729-3857
www.mpa.gov.nl.ca/mpa/fes/emo/

Northwest Territories 
Emergency Measures Organization
Dept. of Municipal and Community Affairs
Government of Northwest Territories 
P. O. Box 1320
Yellowknife, NT X1A 2L9
Tel: (867) 873-7083  or  873-7785
Fax: (867) 873-8193 
www.maca.gov.nt.ca/safety

Nova Scotia
Nova Scotia Emergency Management

Office
P. O. Box 2581 
Halifax, NS   B3J 3N5 
Tel: (902) 424-5620  Fax: (902) 424-5376 
www.gov.ns.ca/emo

Nunavut 
Nunavut Emergency Management
Department of Community Government

and Transportation
P. O. Box 1000, Station 700
Iqaluit, NU  X0A 0H0 
Tel: (867) 975-5300  Fax: (867) 979-4221

Ontario
Emergency Management Ontario
Ministry of Public Safety and Security  
77 Wellesley St. West, Box 222
Toronto, ON   M7A 1N3
Tel: (416) 314-3723  Fax: (416) 314-3758 
www.mcscs.jus.gov.on.ca

Prince Edward Island
Emergency Measures Organization
134 Kent Street, Suite 600
Charlottetown, PE   C1A 7N8 
Tel: (902) 368-6361  Fax: (902) 368-6362
www.gov.pe.ca/commcul/emo

Québec 
Direction générale de la Sécurité civile et 

de la sécurité incendie
Ministère de la Sécurité publique
2525, boul. Laurier, 5e étage
Sainte-Foy, QC  G1V 2L2 
Tel: (418) 644-6826  Fax: (418) 643-3194 
www.msp.gouv.qc.ca/secivile/

Saskatchewan
Saskatchewan Emergency Management

Organization  (SaskEMO)
100 - 1855 Victoria Avenue
Regina, SK  S4P 3T2
Tel: (306) 787-9563  Fax: (306) 787-1694 
www.cps.gov.sk.ca/safety/emergency

Yukon Territory
Yukon Emergency Measures Branch
Department of Community Services
P. O. Box 2703, EMO 
Whitehorse, YK  Y1A 2C6 
Tel: (867) 667-5220  Fax: (867) 393-6266
www.community.gov.yk.ca/emo/

Per PSEPC www.psepc.gc.ca
Fedhealth verified info & links:18-Apr-2007
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To learn more about Public Safety Canada, visit www.publicsafety.gc.ca or
call their General enquiries line at 613-991-3301.

A few other sites of interest for Canadians are www.safecanada.ca, the
Emergency Preparedness Week site at www.epweek.ca and PS’s Family
Preparedness site at www.getprepared.ca



INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF RED CROSS
AND RED CRESCENT SOCIETIES

The International Federation of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies’
work focuses on 4 core areas: promoting humanitarian values, disaster
response, disaster preparedness, and health and community care.  

International Federation of Red Cross 
and Red Crescent Societies 

P. O. Box 372
CH-1211 Geneva 19

Switzerland
Telephone: (+41 22) 730 42 22   

Fax: (+41 22) 733 03 95
Internet:  www.ifrc.org

The online Directory has an alphabetic listing by country of all the Red
Cross and Red Crescent Societies worldwide.

THE SALVATION ARMY

The International Emergency Services section of The Salvation Army
strives to provide support, training and resources to respond to the needs of
those affected by emergencies without discrimination.

The Salvation Army
International Headquarters

101 Queen Victoria St
London EC4P 4EP

England
Telephone: (+44 20) 7332 0101

Fax: (+44 20) 7236 4681
Internet:  www.salvationarmy.org

The Salvation Army is in over a hundred countries. Click on the world map
or use the drop down menu to find your country’s web site. Or click on the
“Contact” menu item for more information.
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APPENDIX A
Citizen Corps / CERT

(Volunteer Programs for Americans & Canadians)

WHAT IS CITIZEN CORPS?

Citizen Corps, a component of USA Freedom Corps, was created to help
coordinate volunteer activities that make the nation’s communities safer,
stronger, and better prepared to respond to any emergency situation.
Citizen Corps is managed at local levels by Citizen Corps Councils, which
bring together existing crime prevention, disaster preparedness, and public
health response networks with the volunteer community and other groups.

CITIZEN CORPS PROGRAMS & PARTNERS

Community Emergency Response Teams (CERTs) educate people about
disaster preparedness and trains them in basic disaster response skills, such
as fire safety, light search and rescue, and disaster medical operations.
Using their training, CERT members can assist others in their neighbor-
hood or workplace following an event and can take a more active role in
preparing their community. The program is administered by DHS.

Fire Corps promotes the use of citizen advocates to enhance the capacity
of resource-constrained fire and rescue departments at all levels: volunteer,
combination, and career. Citizen advocates can assist local fire departments
in a range of activities including fire safety outreach, youth programs, and
administrative support. Fire Corps provides resources to assist fire and 
rescue departments in creating opportunities for citizen advocates and 
promotes citizen participation. Fire Corps is funded through DHS and is
managed and implemented through a partnership between the National
Volunteer Fire Council, the International Association of Fire Fighters, and
the International Association of Fire Chiefs. Visit www.firecorps.org

Neighborhood Watch incorporates terrorism awareness education into its
existing crime prevention mission, while also serving as a way to bring 
residents together to focus on emergency preparedness and emergency
response training. Funded by Department of Justice, Neighborhood Watch
is administered by the National Sheriffs' Association. Learn more at
www.usaonwatch.org

Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) strengthens communities by helping med-
ical, public health and other volunteers offer their expertise throughout the
year as well as during local emergencies and other times of community
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need. MRC volunteers work in coordination with existing local emergency
response programs and also supplement existing community public health
initiatives, such as outreach and prevention, immunization programs, blood
drives, case management, care planning, and other efforts. The MRC 
program is administered by the Department of Health & Human Services.
Learn more at www.medicalreservecorps.gov

Volunteers in Police Service (VIPS) works to enhance the capacity of
state and local law enforcement to utilize volunteers. VIPS serves as a gate-
way to resources and information for and about law enforcement volunteer
programs. Funded by DOJ, VIPS is managed and implemented by the
International Association of Chiefs of Police. To learn more visit
www.policevolunteers.org

Citizen Corps Affiliate Programs & Organizations offer communities
resources for public education, outreach, and training; represent volunteers
interested in helping to make their community safer; or offer volunteer
service opportunities to support first responders, disaster relief activities,
and community safety efforts. Some Affiliates include:

The American Radio Relay League (ARRL) represents the interests of
the more than 650,000 U.S. Radio Amateurs (or “HAMS”). Many amateurs
have organized themselves under a formal structure to better provide 
public service and emergency communications like the Amateur Radio
Emergency Service (ARES) and Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Service
(RACES). Learn more by visiting www.arrl.org or contact your local
Emergency Management office.

Civil Air Patrol is a congressionally chartered, non-profit corporation and
is the civilian auxiliary of the U.S. Air Force. CAP supports Homeland
Security efforts by providing coastal patrol, air/ground observation, radio
communications and relay, aerial reconnaissance, air-to-ground photogra-
phy, radiological monitoring, and disaster and damage assessment assets.
Learn more by visiting www.cap.gov.

National Association for Search and Rescue is a non-profit membership
association comprised of thousands of paid and non-paid professionals
interested in all aspects of search and rescue throughout the United States
and around the world. NASAR has trained over 30,000 responders since
1989 utilizing its internationally respected SARTECH© Certification
Program. NASAR is dedicated to ensuring that volunteers (non-paid pro-
fessionals) in search and rescue are as prepared as the career public safety
personnel (fire, law and emergency medical services) with whom they
work on a daily basis. Learn more at www.nasar.org.

Some other Affiliates include The American Legion, Home Safety Council,
National Safety Council, National Voluntary Organizations Active in
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Disaster (NVOAD) and many others. To learn more about Citizen Corps
or to check if there’s a local council in your community, please visit
www.citizencorps.gov. 

And visit USA Freedom Corps to learn about other volunteer opportunities
and programs at www.usafreedomcorps.gov.

MORE ABOUT CERT

In the United States and Canada, the Community Emergency Response
Team (CERT) program helps train volunteers to assist first responders in
emergency situations in their communities. CERT members give critical
support to first responders in emergencies, provide immediate assistance to
victims, organize spontaneous volunteers at a disaster site, and collect 
disaster intelligence to support first responder efforts.  

The CERT course is taught in the community by a trained team of first
responders who have completed a CERT Train-the-Trainer course con-
ducted by their state training office for emergency management, or
FEMA's Emergency Management Institute (EMI), located in Emmitsburg,
Maryland. CERT training includes disaster preparedness, disaster fire 
suppression, basic disaster medical operations, and light search and rescue
operations and is usually delivered in 2-1/2 hour sessions, one evening a
week over a 7 week period.

FEMA’s online "Introduction to Community Emergency Response Teams",
IS 317, is an independent study course that serves as an introduction to
CERT for those wanting to complete training or as a refresher for current
team members. It has six modules with topics that include an Introduction
to CERT, Fire Safety, Hazardous Material and Terrorist Incidents, Disaster
Medical Operations, and Search and Rescue. It takes between six and eight
hours to complete the course. The IS 317 can be taken by anyone 
interested in CERT. However, to become a CERT volunteer, one must com-
plete classroom training offered by a local government agency such as the
emergency management agency, fire or police department. To learn more,
visit http://training.fema.gov/EMIWeb/IS/is317.asp

For more information about CERT programs or to check if a CERT is in
your community, please visit  www.citizencorps.gov/cert/ ... or visit
www.cert-la.com (click on “Other CERT Team Links”) ... or call your
local, state, provincial, or territorial Emergency Management Office to ask
about volunteer opportunities.

Or visit your local or state / provincial web site to learn about other types
of volunteer groups in your area and get involved!
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APPENDIX B
Business Continuity
(Plan for the Unexpected)

WHAT IS BUSINESS CONTINUITY?

Basically the concept we’re focusing on means how quickly your business
could reopen and function following a flood, fire, terrorist attack or even
pandemic flu. By planning in advance with managers and employees, the
odds of  a company surviving and recovering from a disaster increase 
dramatically.

According to the Department of Homeland Security’s Ready Business site,
America’s businesses form the backbone of the nation’s economy; small
businesses alone account for over 99% of all companies with employees,
employ 50% of all private sector workers and provide nearly 45% of the
nation’s payroll. And, according to the American Red Cross Disaster
Services’ Business & Industry Guide web page: while reports vary, as
many as 40% of small businesses do not reopen after a major disaster like
a flood, tornado or earthquake. They were unprepared for a disaster; they
had no plan or backup systems.11

A commitment to planning today will help support employees, customers,
the community, the local economy and even the country.

TIPS ON DEVELOPING YOUR BUSINESS PLAN

No matter what size your business is you should plan in advance to man-
age any type of emergency. Obviously, a large company’s plan will be
much more complex than a small home office or a Mom & Pop shop, but
the following tips may help you get started. 

Please note, we are only covering some key issues here extracted from
DHS’ Ready Business site then listing some resources and links at the end,
but realize there are many resources available to business owners including
consultants who can develop a business continuity plan for your company.

Learn risks - Ask your local emergency management office what types of
natural and man-made disasters are common in the places where you have
offices or buildings and review those topics in this book.

Learn “Threat Levels” - Review the District of Columbia Emergency
Management Agency’s Terrorist Threat Advisory System for tips on
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what business owners and managers should be doing at each color code.
(see pages 82-89)

Make a plan - Visit www.ready.gov/business to download Sample Plans,
Checklists, Forms, etc. Also ...

• Find out which staff, materials, procedures and equipment are
needed to keep your business operating.

• Create a list of suppliers, shippers, and key contacts you use daily.
• Decide where you would go if your building, office or store is not

useable. (Known as a continuity of operations plan or COOP.)
• Plan for payroll continuity.
• Define who will help develop your company’s emergency plan.
• Make sure everyone involved knows what to do and have backup

staff trained and ready to fill in, if needed.
• Share your plans with others in your building or complex and talk

to local First Responders, vendors and others to exchange ideas,
experience and knowledge.

• Update and review plans at least once a year if not more often.

Keep employees in mind - A good plan includes your most important asset.
• Keep lines of communication open both ways with newsletters,

alert systems through email or voicemail, Q & A sessions with
management and key personnel involved with planning, etc.

• Ensure you have plans for disabled employees and assign “bud-
dies” to help during an emergency. Visit www.nod.org for tips.

• Update employee emergency contact data often and keep a current
copy with other important papers off-site or in Grab & Go kits.

• Practice, practice, practice -- make sure all employees do drills and
know what to do and where to go during and after a disaster.

Make or get Grab & Go kits - Review Section 1 for tips on assembling a
Disaster Supplies Kit for your people. Share ideas with employees too
since they may want to make their own small “Office Kit” with personal
items. Many companies sell pre-stocked or customized Corporate Kits
based on number of employees and days needed - check online or Yellow
pages for “disaster products” or call your local Red Cross.

Stay or go..? - Plan in advance how staff should shelter-in-place versus
evacuate the building. (see THINK ABOUT SHELTER in Section 1 and
EVACUATION topic in Section 2)

Things to plan for if instructed to “Shelter-in-place”:
• Listen to local authorities and tune in radio or TV for updates.
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• If possible, know who’s in the building if there is an emergency.
• Set up a warning system (and remember folks with hearing or

vision disabilities or non-English speaking workers).
• Determine which room or area will be used for shelter for each

type of disaster in advance (i.e. some emergencies require staying
above ground - others may be best underground or in a sealed
room - review Section 2 for tips on sheltering). Discuss ideas with
others in your building or complex or with First Responders.

• Calculate air requirements for sealed room. (see HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS or TERRORISM topic)

• Consider installing a safe room. (see MITIGATION TIPS)
• Assign certain people to grab Kits, take headcounts, seal off room,

etc. and have backups lined up in case someone’s off or injured.
• Take a headcount or have a checklist of people in shelter.
• Practice, practice, practice -- make sure employees know shelter-

in-place plans and be ready to explain procedures to newbies not
familiar with your plans (like customers or suppliers who might be
at your building when an event occurs).

Things to plan for when making an “Evacuation plan”:
• If possible, know who’s in the building if there is an emergency.
• Decide in advance who in your staff and your building has the

authority to order an evacuation. And if local authorities tell you
to leave - DO it!

• Determine who is in charge of shutting down critical operations
and systems and locking doors (if possible) during evacuation.

• Draw a map of your shop or building and mark locations of exits,
disaster and first aid kits, fire extinguishers and utility shut-off
points. Plan at least two escape routes from different sections of
facility. Post copies of maps so employees can find them easily
and share copies with local First Responders.

• Set up a warning system (and remember folks with hearing or
vision disabilities or non-English speaking workers). 

• Have flashlights handy or install emergency lighting to help staff
exit safely. (Note: never use lighters since there may be gas leaks.)

• Pick two meeting places (assembly sites) in advance for staff to go
- one near the facility and one further away. Also discuss how
employees should notify someone if they need to leave the site or
aren’t able to reach one.

• Take a headcount or have a checklist of people at assembly site.
• Practice, practice, practice -- make sure employees know evacua-

tion plans and be ready to explain procedures to newbies not
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familiar with your plans (like customers or suppliers who might be
at your building when an event occurs). Practice drills with other
tenants or businesses in your complex and share plans and ideas.

Practice fire drills - Fire is the most common of all business disasters.
• Contact your local Fire Marshal to inspect your shop or building.
• Install smoke detectors and fire extinguishers and test them often!
• Set up a warning system (and remember folks with hearing or

vision disabilities or non-English speaking workers).
• Do fire drills and make sure people know how to stay below the

smoke, how to test doors to see if they are hot, etc. (see tips in
FIRES & WILDFIRES topic)

Be prepared for medical emergencies - Provide first aid and CPR training
to your staff and keep first aid kits stocked and accessible. (see Section 3
for TIPS ON BASIC FIRST AID)

Get involved - Join or form a CERT with your local EM. (see page 219)

Practice & fine tune - Take notes on things that should be modified during
drills and get feedback from employees so your plan is continually improv-
ing. Let everyone know about changes to plans and practice drills often.
And don’t forget your new hires - include plan in Training Programs.

Encourage preparedness - Provide customized copies of this book to all
your employees (and customers) so they can develop their own personal
family plans and kits at home. Send preparedness reminder tips in emails
or newsletters.

Have a communications plan - Write a crisis communications plan in
advance so you are prepared to communicate with employees, customers
and others during and after a disaster. 

• Employees - Be prepared to tell workers when, if and how to
report to work after an emergency (either through voicemail, email
or manual call system). Explain how the incident may affect jobs.

• Management - Give executives as much information as possible
to protect employees, customers, vendors and nearby facilities.

• Public - You may need to update the media and general public
about the safety or status of employees or buildings and that plans
are in place for recovery.

• Customers - Stay in touch with clients so they know when prod-
ucts or services are back in stock or online.

• Government - Let officials know what your company can do to
help in recovery efforts and ask for help, if needed.
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• Other Businesses/Immediate Neighbors - Be prepared to give
neighboring companies or competitors updates on the nature of the
situation in case they need to make plans for their own safety.

Help employees recover - Support your workers as they cope with the
stress of recovering from a disaster. See TIPS ON RECOVERING FROM
A DISASTER ... and ...

• Provide time off so workers can get their home life in order.
• Offer care or professional counselors on-site.
• Get folks back into work routines once possible.

TIPS ON PROTECTING YOUR BUSINESS

Ready Business suggests in addition to emergency planning, the following
steps be taken to safeguard your company and secure your physical assets.

Review insurance - Meet with your agent or provider to review policies.
• Ask if current coverage includes physical losses, flood coverage

and business interruption (& visit www.floodsmart.gov for tips).
• Plan how you would pay creditors, employees and yourself.
• Find out what records your provider would need after a disaster

and store those papers in a safe place.
• Download Insurance Discussion Form and Computer Inventory

Form off the Ready Business site at www.ready.gov/business.

Utilities - Think about what your company would do if there’s no power,
gas, telecommunications, sewer and other utilities.

• Talk to providers and ask about alternative and backup options
during disruptions of service.

• Ask how and when to turn off utilities and never try to turn gas
back on - call the gas company!

• Consider getting portable generators but never use them inside
since they produce deadly carbon monoxide gas. 

• Get wireless phones, walkie-talkies or other devices that don’t rely
on electricity so you can stay in touch with employees and cus-
tomers. Keep extra batteries on-hand too.

• Have backup providers lined up in case your telephone or Internet
services are down locally.

• Make sure Disaster Supplies Kit includes sanitation items in case
sewer lines are damaged. (see TIPS ON SANITATION OF
HUMAN WASTE near end of Section 2)
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Protect assets - There are some things you can do in advance to protect
your building and equipment ...

• Install smoke detectors and fire extinguishers and test them often.
• Draw a map of your building and mark locations of exits, fire

extinguishers and utility shut-off points. Post copies so employees
can find them easily and share copies with local First Responders.

• Consider installing extra security measures like alarm systems,
automatic sprinklers, closed circuit TV, keypad or card access sys-
tems, or security guards. (see page 87 for additional security tips)

• Think about all the ways people and deliveries enter and leave
your building and the potential risks associated with them. (See
TERRORISM topic which covers specific things businesses should
be doing at each Threat Level [color-code] and tips on handling
bomb threats and suspicious packages.)

• Learn about FEMA’s Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) loans and
other cost-saving mitigation tips for structures and property by
visiting www.fema.gov.

• Plan how you would replace machinery, computers or equipment
quickly if it’s damaged or destroyed and keep extra supplies on-
hand.

• Decide where you could run the business if your shop’s not usable.
• Ensure any backup location complies with local, state and federal

codes and other safety regulations and ask your insurance agent if
operating at another facility impacts your policy.

Secure equipment - Use straps or L-braces to batten down cabinets or
machinery, move heavy items to lower shelves and raise electrical equip-
ment off the floor. (see MITIGATION TIPS at beginning of Section 2)

Airborne threats - Several types of disasters can impact the air quality of a
building from mold due to flooding, airborne particles from a biological
attack or dirty bomb, or smoke from a wildfire. Ask if there are options to
improve air quality and protection in the Heating, Ventilating and Air-
Conditioning (HVAC) system.

• Make sure unit is in good, working condition.
• Practice shut-down procedures for the HVAC system.
• Secure outdoor air intakes but never seal them. Ask if they can be

relocated to an area with limited access (especially intakes that are
close to or underground.)

• Consider upgrading the filtration system with High Efficiency
Particulate Arrester (HEPA) filter fans or get portable HEPA filters
to help remove dander, dust, molds, smoke and other contami-
nants. (see AIR QUALITY MITIGATION)
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Cyber threats - Computer crime and hactivism cost businesses billions of
dollars every year. Whether you use one computer or a massive network, it
is critical to keep your system protected from viruses and attacks.

• Make sure computers and wireless devices have current anti-virus
software and firewalls .. schedule them to scan daily or weekly and
update virus patterns often. Encourage employees to protect their
personal home devices too.

• Set security preferences as high as possible on Internet browsers
and virus packages.

• Do NOT open emails or attachments from unknown sources.
• Use long passwords (best to use both numbers and letters), change

them often and don’t share them with others.
• Backup data often and keep a daily or weekly backup off-site.
• Make sure someone knows how to download patches or fixes in

case a computer or system gets infected.
• If your business is hacked, file a complaint with the Internet

Crime Complaint Center at www.ic3.gov (The IC3 is a partner-
ship between the Federal Bureau of Investigation [FBI] and the
National White Collar Crime Center [NW3C]. According to the
FBI’s Cyber Division, agents have been closely trained to be dis-
creet, to protect your public image and your intellectual property,
and to not disrupt your operations.)

• Stay current on cyber threats by joining DHS National Cyber
Security Division’s US-CERT www.us-cert.gov or the FBI’s
InfraGard www.infragard.net or visit Public Safety Canada’s
Cyber site at www.publicsafety.gc.ca for alerts and advisories.

• Visit www.ready.gov/business and download the U.S. Chamber
of Commerce and the Internet Security Alliance Cyber
Security Guide from the “Protect Your Investment
CyberSecurity” page.

• Review ABOUT CYBER ATTACKS in TERRORISM topic.

Pandemic planning - According to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce, each
year the flu kills 36,000-40,000 Americans, hospitalizes over 200,000 and
costs the U.S. economy over $10 billion in lost productivity and direct
medical expenses. Health experts warn a pandemic flu could kill over half
a million Americans, hospitalize 2 million more, and cost the economy an
estimated $160 - $675 billion.12

• Talk with local public health officials and health care providers
and stay current on health alerts and advisories.

• Adopt business practices that encourage sick employees to stay
home and anticipate how to function with a smaller workforce 

• Visit www.pandemicflu.gov (more Avian flu links on page 190)
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ADDITIONAL BUSINESS CONTINUITY RESOURCES

There are many books, associations and web sites focusing on business
continuity topics, as well as professional consultants who can come in and
develop a business continuity plan for your company. The following links
are just a sampling of the thousands of resources out there so spend some
time researching to see which ones fit your company’s specific needs.

DHS Ready Business - A more in-depth overview of business continuity,
forms, checklists and brochures are available on the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security’s Ready Business site at www.ready.gov/business

NFPA 1600 - The National Fire Protection Association serves as the
world's leading advocate of fire prevention and is an authoritative source
on public safety. NFPA’s 300 codes and standards influence every building,
process, service, design, and installation in the United States.

NFPA 1600 Standard on Disaster/Emergency Management and
Business Continuity Programs is not a handbook or “how-to” guide with
instructions on building a comprehensive program, but it outlines the man-
agement and elements that organizations should use to develop a program
for mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery. NFPA 1600 is now
the recommended standard on national preparedness. Businesses can
download a copy of NFPA 1600 at www.nfpa.org.

FEMA Business & Industry Guide - An excellent resource for businesses
produced by FEMA is the Emergency Management Guide for Business
& Industry. It is a step-by-step approach to emergency planning, response
and recovery for companies of all sizes and available on FEMA’s web site
at www.fema.gov.  (Click on Business & Professionals)

Red Cross - Both the American and Canadian Red Cross have courses and
programs designed specifically for the workplace. The American Red
Cross also has a resource called Guide to Business Continuity Planning
CD-ROM. To learn more about their CD, visit www.redcross.org or call
your local Chapter.

DCEMA’s BIEMP - The District of Columbia Emergency Management
Agency has an excellent DC Business and Industry Emergency
Management Plan groups can use as a guide. Visit http://dcema.dc.gov
and click on “Emergency Plans” (under the Information heading). Or check
with your local emergency management office to ask if they have any busi-
ness continuity plans, links or data developed for your specific area.
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Web links - The following list includes some agencies, companies and non-
profit groups providing products, services, free e-newsletters and resources
about business continuity and planning (in alphabetical order). 

AlertsUSA www.alertsusa.com

ASIS International  www.asisonline.org/guidelines/guidelines.htm

Association of Contingency Planners  www.acp-international.com

Business Roundtable Partnership for DR  www.respondtodisaster.com

Canadian Centre for Emergency Preparedness  www.ccep.ca

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention  www.cdc.gov/business

Continuity Central  www.continuitycentral.com

ContinuityPlanner E-ZINE  www.the-Ezine.com

CPM Online  www.contingencyplanning.com

Disaster Recovery Journal  www.drj.com

Disaster Resource Guide  www.disaster-resource.com

Institute for Business and Home Safety  www.ibhs.org

Institute for Business Continuity Training  www.ibct.com

Jane’s Security Assessment www.janes.com/jsas/practice_security.html

MessageOne  www.messageone.com

National Institute for Occupational Safety & Health www.cdc.gov/niosh

Public Safety Canada  www.publicsafety.gc.ca/chan/bus/index-en.asp

Public Entity Risk Institute (PERI)  www.riskinstitute.org

Safe Canada  www.safecanada.ca

US Chamber of Commerce  www.uschamber.com/issues/index/defense

US Department of Health & Human Services  www.pandemicflu.gov

US Small Business Administration  www.sba.gov
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APPENDIX C
School Safety Resources

(Tools for Educators, Officials & Parents)

According to the U.S. Department of Education, every day more than 50
million students attend schools that continue to be havens of safety. In fact,
crime in schools has been decreasing since 1992. The CDC reports the
number of children and youth homicides that are school-related make up
only 1% of the total number of child and youth homicides in the U.S.
However, recent events have sparked an interest in school safety.

Parents / guardians need to be proactive and work with school officials to
find out what the procedures and plans are in the event of a disaster, lock-
down or evacuation. Get involved by attending school safety planning
meetings, working with local PTAs or volunteering your time at the school.
And keep the lines of communication open with your children starting at a
very early age so kids feel comfortable coming to you with questions or
problems they may face at school.

Due to limited space, we are providing a sampling of the many agencies,
companies and nonprofits providing products, services and resources about
School safety and planning (in alphabetical order). Please spend some time
researching these links to see which ones fit your school’s specific needs.
Also check out Additional Resources & Web Sites on pages 260-263.

American Psychological Association (offers books, videos, articles and
news on topics like bullying, natural disasters, trauma, violence, etc.)
www.apa.org/topics/topicviolence.html

American Red Cross (offer Youth Programs like Masters of Disaster,
Facing Fear: Helping Young People Deal with Terrorism and Tragic
Events, etc.)  www.redcross.org

American School Counselor Association (offers resources and publica-
tions for Counselors & Members, Administrators and Parents & Public)
www.schoolcounselor.org

CDC Healthy Schools Health Youth! (offers information on health topics
like Crisis Preparedness & Response, Injury & Violence, etc.)
www.cdc.gov/HealthyYouth

Center for Safe Schools (provides physical and online resources for the
prevention of school violence and recovery after traumatic events, list of
State School Safety Centers, etc.)  www.safeschools.info
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Jane’s (company offers comprehensive School Safety and planning guides
for education and security professionals)  www.janes.com

KidsPeace (resources to help kids deal with crisis)  www.kidspeace.org

National Association of School Psychologists (offers resources on Crisis
Response, Natural Disasters, Trauma, War/Terrorism materials, etc.)
www.nasponline.org/NEAT/

National School Safety and Security Services (company specializing in
school security, training, assessments and consulting for K-12 schools - site
has lots of resources, free newsletter, etc.)  www.schoolsecurity.org

National School Safety Center (offers solutions, products and free
resources for schools and communities)  www.schoolsafety.us

PTA (offers many Parent Resources on Safety) www.pta.org/schoolsafety

Public Safety Canada (their Educators’ page offers maps, preparedness
data, activities, etc.)  www.publicsafety.gc.ca

Ripple Effects (company provides software tools for teachers and kids
including several free resources)  www.rippleeffects.com

SafeCanada.ca (offers resources on topics like Bullying, Disasters, Family
and Home Safety, School Safety, etc.)  www.safecanada.ca

The White House’s School Safety Resources for Parents, Schools, Law
Enforcement Officials and Communities (offers lots of great links to
free guides, tools and resources available for schools and communities)
www.whitehouse.gov/news/releases/2006/10/20061010-1.html

U.S. Department of Education Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools
Emergency Planning (offers plans, guides, grant programs, examples,
links and resources for school leaders)  www.ed.gov/emergencyplan

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services Pandemic Flu site
(offers checklists, tools and guides for schools)  www.pandemicflu.gov

U.S. Department of Homeland Security Ready.gov site (tips for families
and kids on how to prepare for emergencies & disasters)  www.ready.gov

U.S. Secret Service Safe School Initiative (provides threat assessment
resources on school shootings)  www.secretservice.gov/ntac.shtml

Youth Crime Watch of America (programs and materials to help young
people keep their schools and communities safe)  www.ycwa.org
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APPENDIX D
More About Nukes

(You CAN Survive...)

No one wants to think about a nuclear crisis - and hopefully it will never
happen - but we as a nation must accept the fact nuclear tensions are rising
globally so we should prepare ourselves and our loved ones in the event the
unthinkable happens.

For decades, movies and some in the media have portrayed a nuclear attack
as a “doomsday” event implying most people would be killed on impact ...
and survivors would want to die once they come out of their shelters. In
reality, unless you are actually at ground zero or within a several mile
radius of the blast zone (depending on the size of the nuke, of course), there
is a very high probability you will survive as long as you limit your expo-
sure to the radiation, take shelter with proper shielding, and wait for the
most dangerous radioactive materials to decay.

In other words, you CAN survive a nuke attack ... but you MUST make an
effort to learn what to do! 

As mentioned in the “Terrorism” topic, by learning about potential threats,
we are all better prepared to know how to react if something happens.
Earlier in this manual we covered nuclear incidents (primarily involving a
power plant accident) and RDDs (dirty bombs) explaining both scenarios
would be pretty localized. We also listed sheltering tips and suggested
items to be included in Disaster Supplies Kits for several days, however a
nuclear attack could create more extensive damage and longer sheltering
requirements meaning more preparation is needed.

In this section we’ll explain a nuke scenario in more detail, give some tips
on sheltering and supplies, and suggest what to do BEFORE, DURING and
AFTER an attack. Please realize this topic is being written with small nuke
devices in mind (like a 1-kiloton to 1-megaton device - similar to what a
terrrorist group may try to obtain and use). A much larger device or a
nuclear war would cause more wide-spread damage and some of this data
could still be helpful. Again, these are some very basic things you can do
to prepare yourself and your family so you can survive the unexpected.

WHAT HAPPENS WHEN A NUKE EXPLODES?
A nuclear blast produces a blinding light, intense heat (called thermal radi-
ation), initial nuclear radiation, 2 explosive shock waves (blasts), mass 
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fires, and radioactive fallout (residual nuclear radiation). And, if a nuke
explodes miles above the earth, it could create an electromagnetic pulse
(EMP). Let’s break this down a little further...

• fireball - a combination of heat and light so intense the
flash can be seen for hundreds of miles. Just looking at
the flash can cause temporary or permanent eye damage.

• thermal radiation - an intense heat that could cause fires
for several miles around ground zero. The heat flash
could cause severe burns from direct exposure or from
burning objects like clothing, buildings, etc.

• initial nuclear radiation - penetrating invisible rays that
can be lethal in high levels

• blast - explosive shock wave that happens a split second
after the fireball. The blast could destroy most buildings
for several miles depending on the size of the nuke and
strength of the structures. A blast can also cause serious
injuries to people from being thrown by the shock wave
or getting hit by flying objects or debris.

• radioactive fallout (residual nuclear radiation) - created
when the fireball vaporizes everything inside it (including
dirt and water). Vaporized materials mix with radioactive
materials in the updraft of air forming a mushroom cloud.
Fallout can be carried by winds for hundreds of miles and
begin falling to the ground within minutes of the blast or
take hours, days, weeks or even months to fall. The heav-
iest fallout would hit ground zero and areas downwind of
that, and 80% of fallout would occur within 24 hours.
Most fallout looks like grey sand or gritty ash and the
radiation given off cannot be seen, smelled, tasted or felt
which is why it is so dangerous.

• mass fires - any size blast would cause fires due to the
intense heat, and keep in mind gas lines, chemicals and
other objects just add fuel to the fires

• EMP - a split-second silent energy burst (like a stroke of
lightning) that can fry electronics connected to wires or
antennas like cell phones, cars, computers, TVs, etc.
Unless electronics are grounded or hardened, North
Americans could experience anything from minor inter-
ference to crippled power, transportation, banking and
communications systems. And a high-altitude nuke could
affect devices within 1,000 miles. 

Sizes of nukes - Nuclear weapons are measured in kilotons (KT = 1,000
tons of TNT) or megatons (MT = 1,000,000 tons of TNT). According to
FEMA, the most common weapons today range from 100KT to 1MT.  A
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suitcase nuke or portable device would most likely be a 1KT to 10KT
bomb. As fyi, the device used on Hiroshima was about a 15KT bomb.

Damage estimates - Effects of a nuke depend on the size of the device and
whether it’s a surface blast or a high-altitude blast. The following graphic
shows the effects of a 500KT surface bomb from Ground Zero (GZ) to 
several miles out. (Courtesy of www.radshelters4u.com and “Nuclear
Attack Environment Handbook”, FEMA - August, 1990)

Please note the number of miles affected by this 500KT blast is fairly small 
(< 6 mile radius). Also realize a suitcase nuke or portable device used by a
terrorist group would potentially be a 1KT to 10KT bomb reducing the
blast zone immensely. In other words, if you are several miles away from
Ground Zero your chances of survival are good if you take immediate
actions to protect yourself.

Map your area - An interesting website by author Graham Allison and the
Belfer Center for Science and International Affairs can provide a visual
map of the impact a 10KT bomb would have by entering a zip code. Check
out www.nuclearterrorism.org/blastmaps.html

MORE ABOUT RADIATION

Nuclear blasts create radioactive materials that emit harmful invisible rays
(radiation). As the materials decay or spread out, radiation levels drop.
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Detection - You cannot see, smell, taste or feel radiation, but special instru-
ments can detect even the smallest levels of radiation. After an incident, 
authorities will monitor levels of radioactivity to determine the potential
danger. However, since it may take days or weeks before First Responders
could get to you, please consider purchasing detection devices for your
home and Disaster Supplies Kits. Having these devices handy during a 
crisis or attack could save your life!

• survey meter - measures rate of exposure or intensity of
radiation at that specific location if you stayed there for an
hour ... like a speedometer in a car (cost: $300-$1,000+)

• dosimeter - a pen-like device you can wear that measures
total dose or accumulated exposure to radiation as you
move around (needs a charger too - cost: $45-$65+ each)

• KFM kit - (Kearny Fallout Meter) measures radiation
more accurately than most instruments since it’s charged
electrostatically. Free plans online or available as a low-
cost kit ($40-$75). And a great science project for kids.

Reduce exposure - Protect yourself from radioactive fallout with ... 
• distance - the more distance between you and the fallout 

particles, the better
• shielding - heavy, dense materials (like thick walls, earth,

concrete, bricks, water and books) between you and fall-
out is best. Stay indoors or below ground.

• time - most fallout loses its strength quickly. The more
time that passes after the attack, the lower the danger.

Types of radiation - Low levels of radiation are all around us in everyday
objects, but the limited exposure allows our body to heal itself so it’s not
dangerous. Nuclear radiation has 3 main types of radiation ...

• alpha - can be shielded by a sheet of paper or by human
skin. If alpha particles are inhaled, ingested, or enter body
through a cut, they can cause damage to tissues and cells. 

• beta - can be stopped by skin or a thicker shield (like
wood). Beta particles can cause serious damage to inter-
nal organs if ingested or inhaled, and could cause eye
damage or possible skin burns.

• gamma - most dangerous since gamma rays can penetrate
the entire body and cause cell damage throughout your
organs, blood and bones. Since radiation does not stimu-
late nerve cells you may not feel anything while your
body absorbs it. Exposure to high levels of gamma rays
can lead to radiation sickness or death which is why it is
critical to seek shelter from the fallout in a facility with
thick shielding!
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Measuring radiation - Radiation is measured in units called roentgens 
(pronounced “rent-gens” and abbreviated as “R”) ... or “rads”. Radiation
detection devices measure the amount of radiation at a specific location or
display the total amount of radiation you’ve been exposed to over a period
of time. Exposure limits vary from person to person. Some people can han-
dle higher amounts of rad exposure than others, but the key thing to
remember is the less radiation you are exposed to the better. 

How many rads are bad? - High doses of radiation in a short span of time
can cause radiation sickness or even death, but if that high dose is spread
out over a long period of time, it’s not as bad. According to FEMA, an 
adult could tolerate and recover from an exposure to 150R over a week or
300R over a 4-month period. But 300R over a week could cause sickness
or possibly death. Exposure to 30R to 70R over a week may cause minor
sickness, but a full recovery would be expected. But ... radioactive fallout
decays rapidly so staying in a shelter with proper shielding is critical!

The “seven-ten” rule - An easy way to estimate the decay of radioactive
materials is to use the “seven-ten” rule. For every sevenfold increase in
time after the initial blast, there is a tenfold decrease in the radiation rate.
Per FEMA’s “Preparedness Planning for a Nuclear Crisis” handbook, the
below table shows how fast it drops from a level of 1,000 rads per hour:

Hours after Fraction Level of
detonation Remaining Radiation

1 ------- 1000 R / hr
7 1/10 100 R / hr

49 (2 days) 1/100 10 R / hr
346 (2 weeks) 1/1000 1 R / hr

In other words, if you have shelter with good shielding and stay put for
even just 7 hours ... you’ve really increased your chances of survival!

Protect your thyroid - Slow down the absorption of radioactive iodine by
taking potassium iodide (KI). KI can be purchased over-the-counter and
is known to be an effective thyroid-blocking agent. In other words, it fills
up the thyroid with good iodine that keeps radioactive iodine from being
absorbed into our bodies. However, KI cannot protect the body from
radioactive elements other than radioactive iodine. (Learn more about KI
on page 75.) A few other options to protect your thyroid include taking
KIO3 or applying an iodine solution to your skin.

Radiation sickness - Exposure to high levels of radiation (especially
gamma rays) over a short period of time can cause severe illness or death.

• First symptoms - sick to stomach (nausea), puking and
diarrhea can start within minutes to days after exposure.
(Note: Keep in mind ... fear can cause similar symptoms.)

235www.itsadisaster.net or call 1-888-999-4325



• More serious symptoms - person may look and feel
healthy for a short time, then become sick again with loss
of appetite, fever, nausea, puking, diarrhea, fatigue and
possibly seizures and coma. This seriously ill stage may
last from a few hours up to several months.

• Skin - damage can start to show up within a few hours
after exposure and include swelling, itching, and redness
of skin (like a bad sunburn). Complete healing may take
several weeks to a few years depending on dose received.

• Hair - serious exposure could cause temporary hair loss

Please note, radiation sickness is not contagious so will not spread person
to person. Consider storing immune-boosting supplements in your Disaster
Supplies Kits to help strengthen immune system and rebuild any 
possible cell damage in the event you are exposed to radiation.

Nuke versus dirty bomb - A nuke creates a massive blast and dangerous
radiation that could spread for hundreds of miles. A radiological dispersion
device (RDD or dirty bomb) uses explosives (like dynamite) to spread low-
level radioactive materials over a small, targeted area. The bomb blast itself
may cause more damage than the radiation. (see pages 112-116)

TIPS ON SHELTERING AND SHIELDING

Some communities provide 2 types of shelters for local citizens, but not all
cities have them plus you may not be able to get to one during a crisis.

• blast shelter - specifically constructed to offer some pro-
tection against blast pressure, initial radiation, heat, and
fire (but realize it can’t take a direct hit from a nuke)

• fallout shelter - can be any protected space that has walls
and materials thick and dense enough to absorb radiation
given off by fallout. (Note: we are mainly focusing on
these types of shelters in this section.)

Basic requirements - Whether you build a shelter in advance or throw
together an expedient last-minute shelter during a crisis, the area should
protect you from radiation and support you for at least 2 weeks. Some basic
requirements for a fallout shelter include ...

• shielding
• ventilation
• water and food
• sanitation and first aid products
• radiation monitoring devices, radio, tools, etc.
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Shielding materials - All fallout shelters must provide good protection from
radioactive particles. FEMA suggests having a minimum of several inches
of concrete or 1 to 2 feet of earth as shielding around your shelter, and the
more the better. The following shows examples of shielding materials that
equal the protection of 4 inches (10 cm) of concrete ...

• 5 - 6 inches (12 - 15 cm) of bricks
• 6 inches (15 cm) of sand or gravel
• 7 inches (18 cm) of earth
• 8 inches (20 cm) of hollow concrete block
• 10 inches (25 cm) of water
• 14 inches (35 cm) of books or magazines
• 18 inches (46 cm) of wood

Underground is best - Taking shelter in a basement or a facility below
ground reduces exposure by 90%. Less than 4 inches (10 cm) of soil or
earth can reduce the penetration of dangerous gamma rays by half.

Prefab shelter - If you have bucks, time and land, there are many types of
prefabricated shelters you can purchase and have buried on your property.
Some have complete living quarters and come fully stocked with food and
other items. Suggest you do some research and get references first though.

Outside shelter - There are free books and pamphlets with instructions on
building underground fallout shelters by FEMA, Cresson Kearny (author
of “Nuclear War Survival Skills”), Shane Connor (CEO of KI4U, Inc.) and
others. If you have a few days, tools, property you can dig down into, and
don’t mind heavy labor ... check out www.oism.org/nwss or
www.ki4u.com. (Both sites describe other shelters too like lean-tos, etc.)

Indoor shelter locations - If you don’t have a fallout shelter you can get to
safely and quickly, these options could provide protection from dangerous
radiation by using shielding materials described on the next page.

• basement - find the corner that is most below ground
level (the further underground you are the better)

• 1-story home / condo / apartment - if no underground
facility, find a spot in center of home away from windows

• trailer home - find sturdier shelter if at all possible (like
a basement or a brick or concrete building)

• multi-story building or high-rise - go to center of the
middle section of the building. Note: if the rooftop of a
building next to you is on that same floor, move one floor
up or down since radioactive fallout would accumulate on 
rooftops. Avoid the first floor (if possible) since fallout
will pile up on the ground outside.
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Indoor shelter shielding - Below are some ways to build an expedient last-
minute shelter in your home, apartment or workplace. Please realize these
tips are very basic things to help protect you from dangerous radiation.

• Set up a large, sturdy workbench or table in location
you’ve chosen (see previous page). If no table, make one
by putting doors on top of boxes, appliances or furniture. 

• Put as much shielding - furniture, file cabinets, appli-
ances, boxes or pillowcases filled with dirt or sand, boxes
of food, water or books, concrete blocks, bricks, etc. - all
around sides and on top of table, but don’t put too much
weight on tabletop or it could collapse. Add reinforcing
supports, if needed. (See page 237 for shielding materials
and remember, the more shielding you use, the better pro-
tection you’ll have from radioactive fallout.)

• Leave a crawl space so everyone can get inside and be
prepared to block opening with shielding materials. 

• Leave 2 small air spaces for ventilation (about 4-6” each)
- one low at one end and one high at other end. (This
allows for better airflow since warm air rises.)

• If you have time and ability to do so, add more mass or
shielding materials (like earth) on the floor above you.
Support or brace floor from below for the added weight.

• Have water, detection devices, radio, food and sanitation
supplies in case you have to shelter for days or weeks.

Ventilation - While inside a shelter you need to circulate fresh air in to
reduce carbon dioxide buildup and help reduce heat. If shelter is above
ground, the natural flow of air through cracks or windows outside shelter
can help move stale warm air out, but basements and underground shelters
may have trouble getting airflow. Some ways to improve airflow ...

• open a door or window - consider opening a door or win-
dow in another part of house or building to improve the
natural air circulation (but don’t expose yourself to fallout
or high radiation levels and don’t open window in shelter)

• air pump - by planning ahead you can purchase or make
a portable pump (read App. B at www.oism.com/nwss)

• directional fanning - make a strong 2-handled fan using
2 sticks (or folded cardboard) and tie or tape a piece of 
cloth (or 2 pieces of cardboard) between sticks to make a
rectangular fan. You want to push warm air out of the
shelter so start with fan straight up in front of your face,
then forcefully push it out and down with your arms com-
pletely extended until fan is parallel with floor (about
waist high), pause then repeat often and as needed.
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Water - As mentioned throughout this manual, water is critical for survival.
In addition to water tips on page 141, some more suggestions include ...

• Store about 1 gallon (about 4 litres) of water per person
per day for drinking, cooking and sanitation. It may be
weeks or months before systems can be tested or they
function properly so consider storing some 55-gallon
drums of water in advance.

• Make sure all water containers have tight-fitting lids and
cover supply to protect it from bacteria, bugs and dirt.

• Use water as extra shielding by lining cardboard boxes
with 2 large trash bags and fill with water.

• If water contains fallout particles, filter it through several
layers of clean cloth or paper towels ... or ... allow water
to stand for several hours so particles settle to the bottom
of container. Only take the water off the top (be careful so
you don’t stir up the settled particles), then purify it using
tips on page 141. 

Food, sanitation items & supplies - Please review pages 18-27 and 140-142
for suggestions and tips on gathering food, first aid items, tools, supplies
and handling sanitation during a crisis. Store enough supplies for several
weeks (or months) in your basement or shelter since services may be 
disrupted for quite some time after a nuke attack. Make sure you rotate 
supplies and test batteries every 6 months as discussed on page 27.

Next we’re mentioning some very basic things to think about and do
BEFORE, DURING and AFTER a nuke attack (many covered in previous
pages and in nuclear topic on pages 74-79). Remember ... unless you are at
ground zero or within a several mile radius of the blast zone (depending on
the size of the nuke, of course), there is a very high probability you will
survive as long as you limit your exposure to the radiation, take 
shelter with proper shielding, and wait for the most dangerous radioactive
materials to decay. 

BEFORE A NUCLEAR ATTACK:
Make a shelter - If you don’t have a basement or underground shelter, think
about how you would design a quick shelter with sufficient shielding to
keep you safe from fallout. (see previous page)

Make a plan - Review Section 1 to develop a Family Emergency Plan and
Disaster Supplies Kit (but expand your supplies so you have 2-4+ weeks
worth on-hand.) Also double check emergency plans for schools, day cares
or places family may be and where they’ll go if evacuated or sheltered. 

239www.itsadisaster.net or call 1-888-999-4325



Protect yourself - Review this Appendix and pages 74-79. And purchase
radiation detection devices from a reputable disaster supplies company.
There are a lot of devices out there that claim they will work but devices
are known to have calibration problems .. so do your homework.

Protect electronics - An electromagnetic pulse could disrupt or fry systems.
Unplugging devices is the best protection, but in most cases you won’t get
advance warning of an EMP.  Electrical and hardware stores carry ground-
ing supplies, surge protectors and battery backup units. Look for the
strongest protection available, but realize electronics may still get fried.

Stay current on threats & alerts - The Department of Homeland Security
www.dhs.gov and Public Safety Canada www.publicsafety.gc.ca post 
alerts and news about national security online.

Learn more - Visit www.oism.org/nwss (free eBook called Nuclear War
Survival Skills), or www.ki4u.com/guide.htm (free 8-page guide with 
planning tips), buy a book or CD with long-term survival tips, or google
“civil defense” to find tons of online resources.

DURING A NUCLEAR ATTACK:
Don’t panic... - Try to stay calm and ...

• Do NOT look at flash, blast or fireball - turn away! 
• Duck & cover .. and watch out for flying debris or fires.

Be aware the 2 shock waves have the force of a tornado
and may take 30 seconds to 2 minutes to reach you.

• Take shelter to protect yourself from radioactive fallout.
Remember ... distance, shielding and time!

• Blast could create an EMP and fry electronics like cell
phones, computers, cars, pacemakers, radios, etc.

IF INDOORS - If near blast, stay put if home or building is not damaged.
If fires are spreading, cover nose and mouth and find shelter in a basement
or building further away. Then ...

• Close doors, windows and fireplace damper and turn off
air conditioner, ventilation fans, furnace and other intakes
since they can pull in air or fallout from outside.

• Go to an underground shelter or make an expedient shel-
ter using as much shielding as possible (like furniture,
appliances, books, boxes of dirt, etc.) in your basement or
the center of room or building.

• Grab your water, food and supplies and have radiation
detection devices ready to monitor radiation levels.
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• Keep a battery-operated radio with you to hear updates
and stay inside until it is safe to go out.

IF OUTDOORS - Cover mouth and nose with a cloth and take shelter
immediately. Remember ... distance, shielding and time.

IF IN A VEHICLE - Keep windows up, close vents, use “recirculating”
air and listen to radio for updates. If possible, drive away from site. If you
can’t and you are near the blast area, seek shelter from deadly fallout.

Things to watch out for:
• fallout - looks like gray sand or gritty ash and is very

radioactive the first few days so find heavy shielding
• fires - gas lines or chemicals may cause them to spread
• flying & falling objects - the blast and shock waves can

shatter windows & hurl objects or body parts like missiles 
• weak floors or stairs - be careful since they could have

been weakened by blasts

Listen - Turn on radio or TV (if working) to learn projected paths of fall-
out or fires. Authorities will give specific instructions for people outside
the blast zone -- some may need to evacuate ... others should take shelter.

Stay or go..? - Evacuate if told to do so by local authorities ... and ...
• Grab your Disaster Supplies Kit.
• Close doors, windows and fireplace damper.
• Cover your mouth and nose with face mask or cloth.
• Keep listening to radio for evacuation routes & updates.

Pets & livestock - If possible, get them indoors or in shelters, especially
milk-producing animals. If fallout has already started, don’t even try to
save them -- it’s not worth the risk.

Take KI..? - If you are near the blast zone or in the projected fallout path,
take your KI according to label instructions.

AFTER A NUCLEAR ATTACK:
Reduce exposure - Get out of the area quickly and into nearest building to
reduce chances of being exposed to deadly radioactive materials.
Remember ... distance, shielding and time.

Things to watch out for:
• fallout - looks like gray sand and radiation levels can be
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deadly the first few days without proper shielding. About
80% of fallout occurs within 24 hours and it can start
falling within minutes of a blast.  

• fires - any size nuke will cause fires due to the intense
heat - plus gas lines, chemicals and other objects fuel fires

• body parts - there may be a lot of dead bodies or body
parts scattered around from the blasts

• weak structures - be careful since floors, stairs or walls
could have been weakened by the blasts

• looting, guns and panicked people - be aware people
may become violent trying to find loved ones, water or
food

• HAZMAT - watch for areas marked “HAZMAT” or
“radiation hazard” and don’t go there

Stay put – If near the blast zone or in projected fallout path ...
• Close doors, windows and fireplace damper and turn off

air conditioner, ventilation fans, furnace and other intakes
since they can pull in air or fallout from outside.

• Go to an underground shelter or make an expedient shel-
ter using as much shielding as possible (like furniture,
appliances, books, boxes of earth, food, water, etc.) in
your basement or the center of room or building.

• Grab Disaster Supplies Kit, have detection devices ready
to monitor radiation levels, and take KI.

• Keep battery-operated radio with you to hear updates (if
working - EMP may knock out communications systems).

• Realize it may take a few days or weeks before radiation
levels drop enough for people to move about safely.

What .. no services? - An electromagnetic pulse (EMP) could disrupt or
crash systems so you may not have access to TV or radio, phones, the
Internet, ATMs, and other devices. 

Clean up - If you leave shelter and get exposed to fallout, remove clothes
and shoes before re-entering shelter so you don’t contaminate others. Rinse
body and hair but remember water may be limited. If possible, keep a
poncho with a hood just outside the shelter so folks can protect head and
clothing while outside. Don’t bring poncho inside shelter though.

Weird symptoms - Exposure to radiation may cause an upset stomach, 
puking or diarrhea, but fear and anxiety cause similar symptoms. A person
with radiation sickness is not contagious, but realize severe cases can be
lethal. (see pages 233-236)
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Handling a death in a shelter - If a person (or pet) dies while in a shelter,
cover body with a sheet or put it in a bag (or tape several large plastic bags
together) and move it outside the shelter. Don’t try to bury it if high levels
of radiation are still in the area, but do poke several pinholes in bag so
gases won’t build up.

Claiming a body - Hundreds or thousands of people could be killed at or
near ground zero from the blast, fires and deadly radiation. Please realize
there may be a long delay before bodies could be recovered, and some may
never be found.

Water - Until water supplies can be tested, water should be filtered and
purified using tips on pages 141 and 239. Make sure everyone has enough
water to drink daily, but use it sparingly for cleaning dishes, clothes or 
personal hygiene.

Food - If you brought perishables into the shelter, use them first (see more
tips on page 140). Limit cooking during the first few days in shelter to
reduce heat, and make sure you have proper ventilation when you do. Keep
in mind, healthy adults can go for weeks with little or no food, so ration out
supplies in case you cannot leave the shelter for some time or have trouble
finding more. Any food that was exposed to fallout should be washed first.

Milk - Children and infants should drink milk made from dried or canned
products until authorities can inspect cows’ milk for exposure to fallout.

Sanitation - All shelters should have some form of sanitation like a bucket
with disinfectant or existing toilets with trash bags since plumbing may not
work. Also realize even mild forms of radiation sickness can cause puking
and diarrhea so it could get smelly in the shelter. If possible, keep small
bags around for folks to use as barf bags and have wipes or sanitizer handy
to reduce the spread of germs. (see more tips on page 142)

Recovery - Some emotions people may experience after an attack include
shock, fear, disbelief and anger. Everyone handles trauma differently, but
adversity can also bring people together. Rebuilding would be a long, slow
process, especially if an EMP knocks out communications and banking
systems. Once it is safe to move around outside, many volunteers will be
needed to help the area and country rebuild and recover.

If more people will learn what to do during a nuclear crisis, there would be
less fear and anxiety. Be aware... be prepared ... and have a plan ~ you
CAN survive a nuke. Spread the word...
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APPENDIX E
The following SAMPLE GUIDELINE / DATABASE was developed and
contributed in April 2001 by South Carolina’s Charleston County
Emergency Preparedness Department. A list of acronyms used in next 6
pages is included on page 250.

Any County Emergency Preparedness
Terrorism Emergency Operations Outline

Counteractions Standard Operations Guide

I.  GENERAL
A. Purpose

The purpose of this SOG is to assist other officials and emer-
gency service personnel with a working outline for developing
a written set of guidelines for the conduct of antiterrorism and 
terrorism counteraction response operations. Contact your local
emergency management agency for assistance.

This outline of antiterrorism is designed to deter and limit the
success of terrorists acts against government / industry
resources / personnel and facilities while Counteraction facili-
tates response to, and recovery from, an actual terrorist incident.
The collection and dissemination of timely threat intelligence
information, informative public awareness programs, and
through the implementation of sound defensive mitigation
measures usually insure the best countermeasures one may
accomplish.

B. Authority

The listing of local city, county, state or federal ordinances as
may be applicable for the intended jurisdictions being protected.

C. References

1.  Presidential Decision Directive 39 [PDD-39], June 1995.

2.  State Terrorism Incident Annexes.

3.  Local Community Bomb Threat Incident Plan.
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4.  Emergency Response To Incidents Involving Chemical
and Biological Warfare Agents.

5.  Terrorism In The U.S. 1982-1992, FBI Report.

6.  The Federal Response Plan [FRP], Terrorism Annex.

7.  Local Airport, Seaport, Transportation, Dam, or Utilities
Emergency Counter Terrorism Plan.

8.  Emergency Response to Terrorism Job Aid, May 2000.

9.  II CT Chemical / Biological Incident Handbook.

D. Definitions

A list as detailed or as brief as may be applicable to the depth of
your SOG. Contact your local emergency management agency
for assistance.

E. Organizations

Apply a basic organization chart for primary agencies that may
be anticipated to support the various aspects of your SOG.
Federal, state, city / county and local. See the local emergency
management agency plan.

II. SITUATION

A. International Terrorism

International terrorism continues as a threat and although it has
been primarily rooted in other countries, a great number of
Americans have been affected by these acts. According to the
U.S. Department of State and as reported in the media large
numbers of the actual terrorist attacks worldwide were targeted
against Americans. The impact of international terrorism still
has vivid images occurring almost worldwide.

B. Domestic Terrorism

Statistics provided by the FBI prior to the mid-1980’s indicated
only a few acts of terrorism inside the United States as influ-
enced by international terrorism. Since the 1993 bombing of the 
World Trade Center in New York it was a clear reminder that the 
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United States is not immune from acts of international terrorism
based within our borders.

It is very clear that managing the consequences of terrorism in
the United States from any source can be a most difficult and 
challenging task. Trying to recover from such senseless terrorist
events has already begun to change the way Americans view the
potential threats and mass effect from a single terrorist act per-
petrated in local communities.

C. Conditions

1. Actual events or threat of a terrorist act may cause imple-
mentation of precautionary measures from as high up as
Presidential sources.

2. The FBI will likely implement a crisis management law
enforcement response to any significant threat or actual act 
of terrorism and include threat assessment / consultation 
and NBC / WMD Technical Assistance.

3. Incidents that occur without advance threat or warning
and that produce major consequences. FEMA will prob-
ably respond and implement within the FRP consequence
management activities.

D. Planning Assumptions

No single agency at any government level has the unilateral
authority or all the knowledge and skills to act in a terrorist
event, especially WMD / WME. The SOG will be activated
upon such threat or an actual event.

Certain instances will require, as in NBC events, that perime-
ters be set and closed to authorized officials and first 
responders as well. The SOG may also have to request activa-
tion of specialty service resources and/or task forces. Your
local emergency management plans may assist this step.

III.CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 

A. Crisis Management

1. Local Law Enforcement generally has lead responsibility
for implementing SOG crisis management.
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2. Each participating agency will maintain a current copy of
the Terrorism Response Alert List of the SOG.

3. A systematic scene approach will often be implemented
while self-protective measures as appropriate are taken
towards controlling the situation. The IMS/ICS frame
work and possible transition into the Unified Command
System may be used as soon as possible.

4. Responders SITREP, staging, direction and command &
control information all within often dynamic incident
events as agencies / personnel and equipment arrive in
force.

5. Communications size-up will be CONTINUOUS  in such
a dynamic incident and should address scene stability in
the SOG (e.g. stable, deteriorated, continuing to deterio-
rate, unsafe).

6. To avoid infrastructure gridlock, establish from the initial
SITREP the priorities needed for life safety and protection.
Address immediate and sequential response structuring.

B. Consequence Management

This level of management integrates all aspects of the response
that will generally protect the public’s health and safety, manage
fears and suffering, and enhance evidence-gathering towards
identifying and eventually apprehending the perpetrators. For
assistance contact your local emergency management agency.

1.  Pre-Incident Phase

a. Protective actions such as organizational SOG’s
aimed at coordinating any threat in the local area via
an identified part of a Command Group. Threatcon 
Alpha or Bravo.

b. SOG’s that establish actions and security awareness
measures that prepare a counter deterrence to terror-
ist vulnerabilities.

2.  Trans-Incident Phase

a. This phase involves the threat emerging to an actual
act or imminent action of terrorism. Threatcon 
Charlie.
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b. Everyone should stay focused on the end objective 
to “save lives” and coordinate cooperative agencies’
efforts to solve most disagreements. ROC’s, JOC’s, 
JIC’s, EOC’s, IST’s, IAP’s, SOG.

3.  Post-Incident Phase

a. This phase may involve an incident that occurred
without any advance warning and produces major
consequences and appears to be an act of terrorism.
Many concurrent efforts of crisis management will
be initiated to establish a short-term Incident Action
Plan.

b. Local officials will mitigate the situation to the best
of their ability until further supported by the com-
bined state and federal resources tasked.

4.  Disengagement

a. If no act of terrorism occurs then the federal response 
will disengage as coordinated.  Stand down will occur 
for all according to their SOP’s / SOG’s.

b. All agencies that responded will be requested to turn
in a copy of their incident logs, journals, messages, or 
other non-sensitive records to the local coordinating
agency. This information will be key to establishing 
an accurate post incident critique. Critiques are often 
delayed pending any legal requirements to keep cer-
tain information in confidence.

c. PISD (post incident stress debriefings) will be offered 
by the proper mental health agency for responders 
based on the nature of event and it’s circumstances.

IV. RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Crisis and Consequence Management

1.  The County Sheriff LNO will:  develop local SOG’s.

2.  Local Response Agencies will: develop local SOG’s.
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B. EOC - JOC Support Agencies

Agencies not covered in this SOG are understood for mutual aid
response to assist neighboring communities. See attached map.

(Suggestion: Include a map with your plan indicating areas
being covered by Support Agencies.)

V.  LOCAL STATE FEDERAL INTERFACE 

This SOG is supported by the Terrorism Incident Annex to the
Federal Response Plan and your State Emergency Operations 
Plan to include any Regional Task Force operational concepts 
applicable.  

Contact your local Emergency Management Agency for assis-
tance in available plans.

VI. PRIMARY POINT OF CONTACT

Inquiries or changes concerning this SOG Outline should be
addressed to Charleston County EPD, Project Officer for
Terrorism Incident Management, 4045 Bridge View Drive, 
North Charleston, SC 29405-7464 or 843-202-7400 and 
Fax 843-202-7408.

DISCLAIMER: Information provided is solely intended as a
sample guideline / database and neither the County of
Charleston nor any agency, officer or employee warrants the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information in the
Terrorism Counteraction SOG database. While every effort is
made to ensure a broad accuracy of this information, portions
may be incorrect or not current for all circumstances and we
shall not be liable for any losses caused by such reliance on this
outline information. Any persons or entities who relies on infor-
mation obtained from this database does so at his or her own
risk.
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Acronyms

Used in preceding 6-page “County Emergency Preparedness
Terrorism Emergency Operations Outline”

B-NICE - Biological, Nuclear Incendiary, Chemical 
or Explosive Device

CAT - Crisis Action Team

CBR - Chemical, Biological, Radiological

EOC - Emergency Operations Center

EPD - Emergency Preparedness Division

FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency

FRP - Federal Response Plan

IAP - Incident Action Plan

ICS - Incident Command System

IMS - Incident Management System

IST - Incident Support Team

JIC - Joint Incident Command

JOC - Joint Operations Center

LNO - LIAISON Officer

NBC - Nuclear, Biological, Chemical devices

PISD - Post Incident Stress Debriefings

ROC - Regional Operations Center

SITREP - Situation Report

SOP - Standard Operating Procedures

SOG - Standard Operating Guidelines

Threatcon - Terrorist Threat Condition

WME - Weapons of Mass Effect

WMD - Weapons of Mass Destruction
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ADDITIONAL RESOURCES
& WEB SITES

AMERICAN RED CROSS DISASTER SERVICES:
Talking About Disaster: Guide for Standard Messages (2004)
The Guide is a set of standard disaster safety messages on many hazards as
well as general disaster safety information and viewable through web pages or
using downloadable PDF files. Members of the National Disaster Education
Coalition include the American Red Cross, DHS, NOAA/National Weather
Service, National Fire Protection Association, Institute for Business and Home
Safety, International Association of Emergency Managers, and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture Cooperative State Research, Education, and
Extension Service.  www.redcross.org/disasterguide

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA):
To order FEMA materials call local or state EM office, or call 1-800-480-2520
M-F 8a-5p EST, or visit www.fema.gov (most materials online)

Are You Ready? Guide (and DVD)  www.fema.gov/areyouready
National Flood Insurance Program www.floodsmart.gov
Urban Search & Rescue www.fema.gov/emergency/usr

PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY OF CANADA EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS: 
PHAC’s Centre for Emergency Preparedness and Response is Canada's
central coordinating point for public health security issues. CEPR serves as
Canada’s single coordinating point for public health emergencies. The Centre
works closely with experts in areas such as infectious disease, food and blood
safety, nuclear, radiological, biological and chemical threats, and many other
preparedness and response issues through 4 specialized offices:

Office of Emergency Preparedness, Planning and Training
Office of  Emergency Services
Office of Laboratory Security
Office of Public Health Security

For more information visit www.phac-aspc.gc.ca/cepr-cmiu/

PUBLIC SAFETY CANADA:  
Canada Border Services Agency www.cbsa-asfc.gc.ca
Canadian Security Intelligence Service http://csis.gc.ca
Correctional Service Canada www.csc-scc.gc.ca
National Parole Board www.npb-cnlc.gc.ca
Royal Canadian Mounted Police www.rcmp-grc.gc.ca

For more information visit www.publicsafety.gc.ca
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WEB SITES (* = COOL STUFF FOR EDUCATORS, KIDS & PARENTS)

Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry  www.atsdr.cdc.gov
* American Academy of Pediatrics www.aap.org/terrorism (Children & 

Disasters)

American Avalanche Association www.americanavalancheassociation.org
American Heart Association www.americanheart.org
American Stroke Association www.strokeassociation.org
* British Columbia Injury Prevention Centre  www.injuryfreezone.com
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation www.cmhc.ca
Canadian Avalanche Association www.avalanche.ca
Canadian Centre for Emergency Preparedness www.ccep.ca
Canadian Institute of Child Health www.cich.ca (Environmental Health tips)

* Canadian Network of Toxicology Centres, Univ. of Guelph - Project
Earth Risk Identification Life  www.uoguelph.ca/cntc/educat/peril.htm

* Canadian Red Cross www.redcross.ca
* Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s BAM! Body and Mind

www.bam.gov (Stuff for kids age 9-13 & Teachers)

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention National Center for
Environmental Health  www.cdc.gov/nceh

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Emergency Preparedness &
Response www.bt.cdc.gov

Central Intelligence Agency  www.cia.gov
* CIA’s Homepage for Kids  https://www.cia.gov/cia/ciakids/
* Dealing With Disasters  www.dealingwithdisasters.com
DisasterHelp www.disasterhelp.gov
* Environment Canada www.ec.gc.ca
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) www.epa.gov
EPA Chemical Preparedness & Prevention (CEPPO) www.epa.gov/ceppo
* EPA’s Environmental Kids Club www.epa.gov/kids
Federal Bureau of Investigation  www.fbi.gov
* FBI - For the Family  www.fbi.gov/fbikids.htm (K-12 stuff/Tips for Parents)

* FEMA for Kids  www.fema.gov/kids
Harvard Center for Risk Analysis  www.hcra.harvard.edu
Health Canada  www.hc-sc.gc.ca
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Heart and Stroke Foundation of Canada www.heartandstroke.ca
Humane Society Disaster Services Program www.hsus.org/disaster
Infectious Disease Society of America  www.idsociety.org
Institute for Business and Home Safety www.ibhs.org
* Institute for Catastrophic Loss Reduction (Ontario)  www.iclr.org
Insurance Bureau of Canada www.ibc.ca
* Lyme Disease Foundation www.lyme.org
Munich Re Group’s Press Releases www.munichre.com

National Academy of Engineering  www.nae.edu

National Emergency Management Network (Sponsors = PERI and ICMA)
www.nationalemergencymanagementnetwork.com

National Fire Protection Association www.nfpa.org
* Fire Wise (Info on wildfires)  www.firewise.org
* Risk Watch  www.riskwatch.org
* Sparky the Fire Dog  www.sparky.org

National Hazards Center (Univ. of Colorado)  www.colorado.edu/hazards/
National Interagency Fire Center www.nifc.gov
National Safety Council www.nsc.org
* Natural Resources Canada www.nrcan.gc.ca (Check out NRCat’s page)

NOAA (National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration) www.noaa.gov
National Climatic Data Center  www.ncdc.noaa.gov
National Weather Service (NWS)  www.weather.gov

* NWS Lightning Safety  www.lightningsafety.noaa.gov
* NWS Public Affairs Links for Kids  www.nws.noaa.gov/pa/forkids.php
* Storm Prediction Center Online Tornado FAQ  www.spc.noaa.gov/faq/tornado

OSHA (Occupational Safety & Health Administration)  www.osha.gov
Pacific Tsunami Warning Center (Hawaii) www.prh.noaa.gov/ptwc/
* Parks Canada  www.pc.gc.ca
* PBS Nova Wave That Shook the World www.pbs.org/wgbh/nova/tsunami
* PBS Online SAVAGE EARTH www.pbs.org/wnet/savageearth
Physicians for Civil Defense  www.physiciansforcivildefense.org
* Safe Canada  www.safecanada.ca

Salvation Army USA www.salvationarmyusa.org
Seismo-Watch  www.seismo-watch.com
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* Smokey Bear.com (Wildfire Prevention) www.smokeybear.com

Statistics Canada www.statcan.ca
The White House (National Security page)  www.whitehouse.gov/response
* United Nations Environment Programme www.unep.org
U.S. Army Medical Research Institute of Infectious Diseases

www.usamriid.army.mil
U.S. Department of Defense DefenseLINK www.defenselink.mil
* U.S. Department of Education Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools

Emergency Planning for Schools  www.ed.gov/emergencyplan
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services Disasters & Emergencies

www.hhs.gov/disasters
U.S. Department of Homeland Security www.dhs.gov
* U.S. Department of Homeland Security Ready.gov www.ready.gov
U.S. Department of Transportation PHMSA Office of Hazardous

Materials Safety http://hazmat.dot.gov
* U.S. Fire Administration  www.usfa.dhs.gov
* U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission www.nrc.gov
U.S. Postal Service  www.usps.com/communications/news/security/
U.S. Small Business Administration  www.sba.gov
* U.S.D.A. Forest Service  www.fs.fed.us
U.S.D.A. Forest Service National Avalanche Ctr www.fsavalanche.org
* U.S.G.S. Earthquake Hazards Program www.earthquake.usgs.gov
* U.S.G.S. Volcano Hazards Program http://volcanoes.usgs.gov
* USA Freedom Corps (Volunteer Network) www.usafreedomcorps.gov
* Volcano World http://volcano.und.edu/
West Coast / Alaska Tsunami Warning Center http://wcatwc.arh.noaa.gov
World Meteorological Organization (U. N. Agency)  www.wmo.ch
World Nuclear Association www.world-nuclear.org
* World Wide Fund for Nature www.wwf.org
Worldwatch Institute www.worldwatch.org
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INDEX

A
activated charcoal, first aid uses for, 21, 153
air pollution, ozone alerts, 54
air quality

improving with HEPA filter, 34, 225
mitigation tips, 34

American Red Cross. See also Canadian Red Cross
about, 202
assistance following disasters, 136
business continuity information, 227
FEMA partner, 210
first aid services and programs, 146

amputation, emergency measures, 161
anthrax (biological agent)

about, 92
how spread, 92
signs and symptoms of exposure, 92-93
treatment, 93

asthma attack, first aid treatment, 162
avalanches. See also landslides

basics, 40, 41-42
facts and figures, 4
safety information, 42-44
types of, 40-41
typical victims, 41

avian flu (bird flu). See also infectious diseases
about, 189
pandemic planning, 226
symptoms and reducing the spread of, 189, 190
where to get more information, 190

B
baking soda

first aid uses for, 21
paste for insect bites or stings, 153
paste for rash, 193
paste for sea critter sting, 156
soak for sunburn, 167
use to put out small grease or oil fire, 56

biological agents, 81. See also terrorism
about, 91-101
basic groups of, 91
how used in an attack, 91-92
safety information, 81, 91-101
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after an attack, 101
before an attack, 99-100
during an attack, 100

types of, 92-99
anthrax, 92-93
botulism, 93
plague, 94
ricin, 94-96
smallpox, 96-97
tularemia, 97-98
viral hemorrhagic fevers (VHFs), 98-99

where to get more information, 101
bioterrorism. See also biological agents

using animals and insects to carry, 91-92
where to get more information, 101, 155

bites
animals or humans, first aid treatment, 152
snakes, first aid treatment, 156-157
ticks, first aid treatment, 157-159

bites and stings
insects, first aid treatment, 153-155
marine animals (sea critters), first aid treatment, 155-156
spiders and scorpions, first aid treatment, 157-159

bleeding
controlling, 160
internal, first aid treatment, 161

blister/vesicants (chemical agent), 102. See also terrorism
mustard gas, 107-108

body parts, severed or amputated, emergency measures, 161
bomb

dirty, about, 112-117
nuclear, about, 231-243
spreading chemicals with a, 102

bomb threat
suspicious packages in mail, dealing with, 114
what to do if you receive a, 113

bones, broken or fractured, first aid treatment, 164
botulism (biological agent)

about, 93
how spread, 93
signs and symptoms of exposure, 93
treatment, 93

breathing problems, 162-163
burns, 165-167

chemical, first aid treatment, 166
electrical, first aid treatment, 166-167
fire or hot liquids, first aid treatment, 165-166
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sunburn, first aid treatment, 167
business continuity

about, 220
avian flu (bird flu) pandemic planning, 226
bomb threats

suspicious packages in mail, dealing with, 114
what to do if you receive a, 113

business plan, 220-228
developing a, 220-224
protecting business, 224-226
resources, 227-228

communications plan, 223-224
cyber threats, 226
disabled employees, tips for, 221, 222
disaster supplies kit, 221
evacuation, planning for, 222-223
fire drills, 223
helping employees recover from a disaster, 224
insurance tips, 224
involve employees, 221
Pre-Disaster Mitigation loans and tips from FEMA, 225
resources

guides and sample plans, 227
web links, 228

security measures for business owners
protecting your building and equipment, 87, 225
protecting your computers, 89-90, 226

shelter-in-place, planning for, 221-222
where to get more information, 227-228

BZ (chemical agent), 102
about, 103
how spread, 103
signs and symptoms of exposure, 103
treatment, 103

C
Canada. See also Public Safety Canada and Public Health
Agency of Canada

Environment Canada, 261
hazardous materials, 68
Weatheradio, 22, 60, 70, 121, 124

provincial/territorial emergency management offices, 214-215
Canadian Red Cross. See also Red Cross

about, 211
assistance following disasters, 136
first aid services and programs, 147

carbon monoxide
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detectors, 55
protecting home from, 34, 130
stranded in car, 131

cardiac arrest (heart attack), first aid treatment, 180-184
cardiopulmonary resuscitation. See CPR
Center for Disease Control and Prevention

Emergency Preparedness and Response
web sites, 97, 101, 112, 117, 261

NCID Division of Vector-Borne Infectious Diseases, 155, 159
Central Intelligence Agency (CIA)

alerts and information on national security, where to find, 117
web sites, 261

CERT (Community Emergency Response Team)
about CERT program, 217, 219
online course, 219

chemical agents, 81. See also terrorism
about, 101-112
categories (types of), 102-109

biotoxins, some names of, 102
blister agents / vesicants, some names of, 102

mustard gas, 107-108
blood agents, some names of, 102

cyanide, 104-105
caustics (acids), a name of, 102
choking / lung / pulmonary agents, some names of, 102

chlorine, 103-104
incapacitating agents, some names of, 102

BZ, 103
metals, some names of, 102
nerve agents (nerve gas), some names of, 102

sarin, 105-107
VX, 108-109

organic solvents, some names of, 102
riot control agents / tear gas, some names of, 102
toxic alcohols, a name of, 102
vomiting agents, a name of, 102

how used in an attack, 102-103
safety information

after an attack, 111-112
before an attack, 109-110
during an attack, 110-111

where to get more information, 112
chemical spill. See hazardous materials
chlorine (chemical agent), 102

about, 103-104
how spread, 104
signs and symptoms of exposure, 104
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treatment, 104
choking, first aid treatment, 168-169

adults or children, 168
infants, 169

CIA. See Central Intelligence Agency
Citizen Corps

about programs, 217-219
affiliate programs & organizations, 218-219
CERT (Community Emergency Response Team), 217, 219
Fire Corps, 217
Medical Reserve Corps (MRC), 217-218
Neighborhood Watch, 217
Volunteers in Police Service (VIPS), 218
where to get more information, 219

civil defense, 240
clothing and bedding

dressing for evacuation, 52
dressing for extreme cold, 130
dressing for extreme heat, 54
items to include in disaster supplies kit, 23-24

cold, extreme. See also winter storms
facts and figures, 8, 129
frostbite and hypothermia, first aid treatment, 170-171
mitigation tips, 37-38
safety information, 129-131
signs of overexposure to, 130

color-coded warning system on terrorist threats, 82-89
computer crimes. See cyber threats
convulsions, first aid treatment, 172
cooking, in a disaster situation, 140
CPR (cardio-pulmonary resuscitation), 180-184

about, 180
for adults (illustrated), 182
for children (illustrated), 183
for heart problems, 180-181
for infants (illustrated), 184
Red Cross courses and programs, 146-147

cyanide (chemical agent), 102
about, 104-105
how spread, 105
signs and symptoms of exposure, 105
treatment, 105

cyber attack, 81. See also cyber threats
about, 89-90
computer-based terrorism, 90
preparing for, 90

cyber threats
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filing complaint to Internet Crime Complaint Center, 226
learn about internet security, 90
protecting your business from, 226
sign up for alerts, 90, 226 

cyclones.  See hurricanes

D
death

claiming a body, 243
handling dead bodies, 144
in a shelter during or after a nuclear attack, 243
loss of a loved one, some things to think about, 144

decontamination (or clean up)
after a biological attack, 101
after a chemical attack, 112
after a hazardous material disaster or spill, 67
after a nuclear emergency or incident, 79, 242
after a radiological event (RDD), 116

Department of Homeland Security
about, 203
alerts, news & threats on national security, where to find, 82,

89, 117, 226
color-coded warning system on terrorist threats, 82-89
National Response Plan, 210

dirty bomb
about, 112-117
dangers of, 113
definition of, 112-113
difference between nuke and, 236
radiation sickness, 116-117
radioactive materials, low-level, 112-113
safety information, 114-117

disabled persons
employee plan, tips for, 221, 222
family emergency plan, tips for, 14
National Organization on Disability web site, 14, 221
special items to include in disaster supplies kit, 24-25

disaster supplies kit. See also kits
expanding for a nuclear threat or attack, 239
for car, 25-26
for classroom or locker or office, 26
for home, 18-25
suggested items to include, 18-27

disasters
disaster supplies kit, suggested items to include, 18-27
emergency plan checklist, 12-15
emotional recovery tips, 132-134
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facts and figures, 2-8
family emergency plan, 16-17
financial assistance following, 137-138
getting help following, 136-137
mitigation tips (to help prevent damage and loss), 30-38, 138
planning for shelter, 28
recovering from, 132-143
returning to damaged home, 134-135
shelter living (during or after an emergency), 139
volunteering to help victims of, 143

dizziness, first aid treatment, 173
drought. See heat, extreme
drowning, first aid treatment, 174

E
ear injuries

ear infections, first aid treatment, 175
foreign objects in ear, 176

earthquakes
buzzwords, 47
facts and figures, 4
mitigation tips, 34-35
safety information, 47-50

El Niño, about, 2
elderly family members

family emergency plan, tips for, 14
special items to include in disaster supplies kit, 24-25

electromagnetic pulse (EMP)
about, 76, 232
protect electronics from, 240

emergencies. See also disasters
calling 9-1-1 or for an ambulance, 150
emergency action plan, handling an emergency situation, 149
Emergency Medical Services (EMS), public’s role in, 148
first aid, check victim for ABCs, 148

Emergency Management Agencies
local offices, role as FEMA partner, 205
provincial & territorial organizations, alphabetic list, 214-215
state & territory offices, alphabetic list, 206-209

emergency plan
checklist, 12-15
contact numbers, 16-17
for business, 220-228

emergency shelters. See shelters
EMP. See electromagnetic pulse
Enhanced Fujita scale (EF scale), about, 120
epileptic seizures, first aid treatment, 172
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evacuation
during a flood, things to do (if time), 61
during a hazardous materials disaster, things to do (if time), 67
during a hurricane threat, things to do (if time), 71
during a nuclear emergency or incident, things to do, 78, 241
during a wildfire, things to do (if time), 59
make a plan for business, 222-223
make a plan for yourself and family, 51
planning for long-term, 51
safety information, 51-52

eye injuries, first aid treatment, 177-178

F
F-scale. See tornadoes
fainting, first aid treatment, 173
fallout. See also radioactive fallout

about, 74, 232
best locations to go during, 237
clean up before entering shelter, 242
filtering water contaminated with, 239
protecting from, 236-238, 240-242
radioactive, 74, 232
reducing exposure to, 234
shelter, 236

basic requirements for a, 236
building a, 236-238
shielding materials, examples of, 237
types of, 237-238
ventilation, 238

sheltering from, 236-239
family members

emergency plan tips for elderly and disabled, 14
family emergency plan, 12-17
information to have on hand, 10-11, 24

Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI)
alerts and information on national security, where to find, 117
how to report cyber crime, 226
sign up for cyber alerts (Infragard), 226
web sites, 261

FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency)
assistance following disasters, 136-138
disaster recovery centers, 136-137
guidelines on volunteering to help, 143
mission of, 204
mitigation tips, for after a disaster, 138
partners, 205, 209-210
regional offices, 204
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volunteer programs (Citizen Corps / CERT), 217-219
fires. See also wildfires

escape plan, having, 55
facts and figures, 5
mitigation tips, 55-56
safety information, 55-57
where to get more information, 57

first aid
airway, breathing & circulation (ABCs), 148
kits, suggested items to include, 19-21
learn about your state’s Good Samaritan law, 151
Red Cross services and programs, 146-147
reducing the spread of germs or diseases, 151

first aid treatment for
animal or human bites, 152
asthma attacks, 162
bleeding, controlling, 160
breathing problems, 162-163
broken or fractured bones, 164
burns, 165-167
choking, 168-169
convulsions, 172
dizziness, 173
drowning, 174
ear injuries, 175-176
eye injuries, 177-178
fainting, 173
frostbite, 130, 170
head, neck or spine injuries, 179
heart problems, 180-184
heat cramps, 185
heat exhaustion, 185-186
heat stroke, 185-186
hypothermia, 130, 171
infections, 187
insect bites and stings, 153-155
internal bleeding, 161
marine animal (sea critter) stings, 155-156
nosebleeds, 161
poisonings, 191-196

absorbed through skin, 191
inhaled, 192
swallowed, 196

poisonous plants, 192-193
radiation sickness, 116
scorpion stings, 157-158, 159
sea critter stings, 155-156
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seizures, 172
shock, 197
slashed or severed body parts, 161
snake bites, 156-157
spider bites, 157-158, 159
stroke, 198
sunburn, 167
sunstroke, 185-186
ticks, 157-159
tooth injuries, 199
West Nile Virus, 154-155

floods
buzzwords, 60
facts and figures, 5
insurance, (National Flood Insurance Program), 33, 61
mitigation tips, 33-34
safety information, 60-62

flu (influenza). See also infectious diseases
about, 188
symptoms and reducing the spread of, 188-189, 190
where to get more information, 190

food
cooking in a disaster situation, 140
disaster supplies kit, what to include, 19
tips for freezer, 140

frostbite, first aid information, 130, 170
Fujita scale, now using Enhanced Fujita scale, 120

G
germs

biological agents and, 91
infections, first aid treatment, 187
infectious diseases and, 188-190
reducing the spread of, 151

Good Samaritan laws, 151

H
hailstorms

facts and figures, 5
safety information, 63-64

hazardous materials
buzzwords, 65 
clean-up, 67
facts and figures, 5
household chemical emergency, 68
Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), about, 65-66
safe room, 66
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safety information, 65-68
shelter-in-place, 66

head injuries, first aid treatment, 179
hearing loss from noise, tips to reduce, 176
heart attack, first aid treatment, 180-184
heat, extreme

facts and figures, 4
first aid for illnesses caused by, 185-186
heat cramps, first aid treatment, 185
safety information, 53-54

heat exhaustion, first aid treatment, 185-186
heat index, 54
heat stroke, first aid treatment, 185-186
Heimlich maneuver, 168
home

disaster supplies kit, suggested items to include for, 18-27
escape plan, having a, 13, 55
household chemical emergency, 68
mitigation tips to help prevent damage and loss, 30-39 
returning to damaged home, 134-135
sheltering, things to think about, 28

Homeland Security. See Department of Homeland Security
human waste. See sanitation
hurricanes

buzzwords, 70
different names for, 69
facts and figures, 6, 69
how classed (categories), 70
safety information, 70-73
Saffir-Simpson Hurricane scale, 70
storm surge, 69, 70

hypothermia, first aid treatment, 130, 171

I-J
infants

choking, first aid treatment, 169
CPR position for (illustrated), 184
heart problems (CPR), 180-181
special items to include in disaster supplies kit, 24

infections
first aid treatment for, 187
reducing the spread of germs or diseases, 151

infectious diseases
about, 188
how they spread, 190
reducing the spread of, 190
types of, 188-190
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avian flu (bird flu), 189, 190
flu (influenza), 188-189, 190
SARS (Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome), 189, 190
staph (staphyloccus aureus), 189-190

where to get more information, 190
influenza. See flu
insect bites and stings, first aid treatment, 153-155
International Federation Red Cross and Red Crescent 
Societies, 216

internet security. See also cyber threats
where to get more information, 90

jewelweed, first aid uses for, 193, (illustrated), 195

K-L
KI. See potassium iodide
kits, suggested items to include

for car, 25-26
extra items to add during winter months, 131

for classroom or locker or office, 26
for first aid, 19-21
for home (disaster supplies kit), 18-25
reminders about, 27

La Niña, about, 2
landslides

about, 40, 44
facts and figures, 4
insurance, 45
safety information, 45-46
warning signs, 45, 46

LEPC. See Local Emergency Planning Committee
lightning. See also thunderstorms

facts and figures, 7, 118
first aid treatment, 166-167
mitigation tips, 35
safety information, 119

livestock, emergency plan checklist, tips for, 15
Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)

about, 65
using LEPC data to help make plan, 65-66

lyme disease. See ticks

M
marine animal stings, first aid treatment for, 155-156
mitigation tips (to help prevent damage and loss), 30-39, 138

about mitigation, 30
air quality, learn how to test in home, 34
earthquakes, 34-35
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fires, 35, 55-56
floods, 33-34
landslides or mudflows, 45
lightning, 35
strategies for businesses and consumers, 31
wildfires, 36-37
wind, 31-33
winter storms and extreme cold, 37-38

mold
cleaning, tips for, 135
where to get more information, 34

mosquitoes, and West Nile Virus, 154-155
mouth-to-mouth resuscitation (rescue breathing)

about and how to perform, 162-163
for choking, 168-169
with CPR, 180-181

MRSA (methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus), 189-190
mudflows

about, 40, 44
facts and figures, 4
flood insurance, 45
safety information, 45-46

mustard gas (chemical agent), 102
about, 107
how spread, 107
signs and symptoms of exposure, 107-108
treatment, 108

N
National Incident Management System (NIMS), 210
National Response Plan (NRP), about, 210
natural disasters. See disasters
neck injuries, first aid treatment, 179
nerve gas.  See chemical agents
9-1-1, tips for calling, 150
NOAA (National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration)

Pacific Marine Environmental Laboratory Tropical 
Atmosphere Ocean project

El Niño and La Niña, about, 2
Weather Radio

about, 0
broadcast warnings for

flood, 60
hurricane, 70-71
tornado, 121
tsunami, 124

disaster kit, including in, 22
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programming, Specific Area Message Encoding (SAME), 0
web sites, 0, 2, 262

nosebleeds, first aid treatment, 161
nuclear blast (detonation), 74, 231-232
nuclear emergency, incident or attack.  See also radiation

buzzwords, 77
community planning for emergencies, 76
electromagnetic pulse (EMP), 76, 232, 240
facts and figures, 6, 74
fallout

about, 74, 232
best locations to go during, 237
clean up before entering shelter, 242
filtering water contaminated with, 239
protecting from, 236-238, 240-242
radioactive, 74, 232
reducing exposure to, 234
shelter, about, 236-238
sheltering from, 236-239

potassium iodide (KI), using, 79, 235
radioactive iodine and, 74-75, 79
safety information

nuclear bomb or device, 231-243
nuclear power plant emergency or incident, 74-79

supplies, storing enough for a, 239
nuclear radiation. See also radiation

about, 232
types of, 234

nuclear weapon or bomb
damage estimates, 233
sizes of, 232-233
surviving an attack, 231-243

O
ozone alerts, 54

P
pain-relief aids (alternative options)

for insect bite or sting, 21, 153-154
for rash caused by poisonous plant, 193
for sea critter (marine life) sting, 156
for spider or tick bite or scorpion sting, 159
for sunburn, 167

pandemic flu. See avian flu
pee. See urine
pets

emergency plan checklist, tips for, 15
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emergency shelters and, 15, 139
evacuation, ask about shelters and plans for, 51
nuclear emergency or incident and, 78, 241
special items to include in disaster supplies kit, 25

plague (biological agent)
about, 94
how spread, 94
signs and symptoms of exposure, 94
treatment, 94

Poison Control Center, 191
poisonings, first aid treatment when

absorbed through skin, 191
exposed to poisonous plant, 192-193
inhaled, 192
radiation sickness, 116
swallowed, 196

poisonous plants, 192-195
first aid treatment, 193
poison ivy, 192, (illustrated), 194
poison oak, 192, (illustrated), 194
poison sumac, 192, (illustrated), 195
urushiol, reactions from, 192-193

potassium iodide (KI) pills. See also radiation
about, 75, 235
using after a nuclear attack, 242
using after a radiological event, 116
using during nuclear emergency or incident, 79, 241

provincial emergency management organizations, 214-215
Public Health Agency of Canada

biological agents, where to get more information, 97, 101
Centre for Emergency Preparedness and Response, 260
web sites, 159, 190
West Nile virus, where to get more information, 155

Public Safety Canada
about, 212-214, 215
alerts & advisories web site, 117, 226, 260
emergency preparedness in Canada, 213-214
partners, 214

Provincial & Territorial EMOs, alphabetic list, 214-215

R
radiation.  See also radiological threat or event 

detection, 74-75, 234
detection devices, types of, 234
measuring, 235
nuclear radiation, 74, 232, 234
reducing exposure to, 75, 115, 234
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sickness
first aid treatment and information, 116-117
symptoms of, 235-236

thermal, 232
types of, 234
using potassium iodide (KI) pills

after a nuclear attack, 242
after a radiological threat or event, 116
during a nuclear emergency, incident or attack, 75, 79, 241

radioactive fallout. See also radiation
about, 74, 232
best locations to go during, 237
clean up before entering shelter, 242
estimating decay (seven-ten rule), 235
filtering water contaminated with, 239
protecting from 236-238, 240-242
reducing exposure to, 234
sheltering from, 236-239
shielding

building indoor shelter with, 238
types of, 237

radiological threat or event
dispersion device (RDD or dirty bomb), 74, 112-113
safety information, 112-117

after an event or explosion, 115-116
before a threat or event, 114
during an event or explosion, 115

identifying suspicious package, 114
where to get more information, 116-117

radon, where to get more information, 34
recovery tips (after any disaster)

emotional, 132-134
general, 134-138

Red Crescent Societies, about, 216
Red Cross

American, about, 202
Canadian, about, 211
first aid services and programs, 146-147
International, about, 216

rescue breathing (mouth-to-mouth resuscitation)
about and how to perform, 162-163
for choking, 168-169
with CPR, 180-181

resources, 251-263
Richter scale, device used to measure earthquake energy, 47
ricin (biological agent)

about, 94
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biotoxin (also considered a chemical agent), 94, 102
how spread, 95
signs and symptoms of exposure, 95
treatment, 95-96

S
safe room. See also shelter-in-place

chemical attack, for protection against, 110
choosing in advance, 28
consider building for home, 32-33
consider installing for employees, 222
FEMA Mitigation Division’s tips about, 31
tornado, for protection from, 121-122
where to get more information, 31, 33
wind, for protection against, 32-33

Saffir-Simpson Hurricane scale, about, 70
Salvation Army, about, 216
sanitation

disinfectants, 142
disposal of human waste in disaster situation, 142
planning for long-term, 239
supplies to help with, 23

sarin (chemical agent), 102
about, 105-106
how spread, 106
signs and symptoms of exposure, 106
treatment, 106-107

SARS (Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome). See also infectious
diseases

about, 189
symptoms and reducing the spread of, 189, 190
where to get more information, 190

school safety resources, 229-230
scorpion stings, first aid treatment, 157-158, 159
sea critter stings, first aid treatment, 155-156
seizures, first aid treatment, 172
seven-ten (7-10) rule, using to estimate decay of fallout, 235
Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome. See SARS
shelter-in-place

about, 28
for protection against

bomb / radiological explosion, 116
chemical attack, 110-111
hazardous materials, 66
nuclear attack, in expedient shelter, 240-242
nuclear emergency or incident, 78

plan for your business and employees, 221-222
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plan for yourself and your family, 28
shelters. See also shelter-in-place

blast, about, 236
building an expedient shelter for nuke crisis, 237-238
fallout, about, 236

basic requirements of, 236
types of, 237-238

living in following a nuclear attack, 236-239, 241-243
living in short-term following a disaster, 139
long-term, 137
pets and, 15, 139
shielding from nuclear radiation, 236-238
things to think about when planning for, 28
ventilation, 238

shielding
about, 75, 234
materials to protect from radiation, 237-238

shock, first aid treatment, 197
slurry. See mudflows
smallpox (biological agent)

about, 96
how spread, 96
signs and symptoms of exposure, 96-97
treatment, 97
where to get more information, 97

snake bites, first aid treatment, 156-157
spider bites, first aid treatment, 157-158
spine injuries, first aid treatment, 179
staph (staphylococcus aureus). See also infectious diseases

about, 189-190
symptoms and reducing the spread of, 190
where to get more information, 190

state and territory emergency management offices, 206-209
stings. See bites and stings
stroke, first aid treatment, 198
sulfur mustard. See mustard gas
sunburn, first aid treatment, 167
sunstroke, first aid treatment, 185-186
syrup of ipecac

first aid use if Poison Control Center instructs use of, 196

T
terrorism

about, 80
before any type of terrorist attack, basic things to do, 81-82
biological agents, 81, 91-101
chemical agents, 81, 101-112
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cyber attacks, 81, 89-90
DCEMA’s Terrorist Threat Advisory System (suggestions for

residents and businesses), color-codes, 82-89
dirty bomb (or RDD), 112-117
facts and figures, 6
Homeland Security Advisory System, color-codes, 82-89
National security, alerts and information about, 89, 90, 117
nuclear threats, 74-79, 81, 231-243
sample plan for county emergency preparedness, 244-250
targets, examples of, 82
types of, 80-81
weapons of mass destruction (WMD), 81, 117
where to get alerts and information about, 82, 89, 117

thunderstorms. See also lightning
facts and figures, 7, 118
safety information, 118-119

ticks, first aid treatment, 158-159
toilets. See sanitation
tools and emergency supplies, for disaster supplies kit, 21-23
tooth injuries, first aid treatment, 199
tornadoes

buzzwords, 120
Enhanced Fujita Scale (EF-scale), 120
facts and figures, 7, 120
safety information, 120-122

tsunamis
buzzwords, 123-124
facts and figures, 7, 123
safety information, 123-125

tularemia (biological agent)
about, 97-98
how spread, 98
signs and symptoms of exposure, 98
treatment, 98

typhoons. See hurricanes

U-V-W
urine (pee)

first aid use for
insect bite or sting, 153-154
sea critter sting, 156

signs of dehydration, 141
ventilation, improve airflow in shelter, 238
viral hemorrhagic fevers (VHFs) (biological agent)

about, 98
how spread, 99
signs and symptoms of exposure, 99
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treatment, 99
volcanoes and volcanic eruptions

calderas formed by supervolcanoes, 8
facts and figures, 7-8, 126
lahars, 126
protecting devices from ashfall, 127
safety information, 126-128
tephra, 126
where to get more information, 127, 128

volunteers
dedication to, iii
helping victims after a disaster, 143
some programs for Americans & Canadians, 217-219

VX (chemical agent), 102
about, 108
how spread, 108
signs and symptoms of exposure, 109
treatment, 109

water
conservation tips, 53-54
disaster supplies kit, suggested amounts to include in, 18-19
filtering fallout particles, 239
purifying for drinking, 141
using as shielding for radioactive fallout, 239

weapons of mass destruction (WMD), 81, 117
weather disasters, facts and figures, 2-8
web sites, used as resources, 260-263
West Nile Virus

first aid treatment, 154-155
where to get more information, 155

wildfires. See also fires
mitigation tips, 36-37
safety information, 58-59
where to get more information, 58

wind, mitigation tips, 31-33
windchill, 130
winter storms. See also cold, extreme

buzzwords, 129
facts and figures, 8, 129
mitigation tips, 37-38
protecting home from carbon monoxide, 130
safety information, 129-131
trapped in a blizzard, 131
windchill chart, web link for, 130
winter driving tips, 131

WMD (weapons of mass destruction), 81, 117
wounds, controlling bleeding, 160
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This Manual is available through the 
following methods:

• for agencies, companies, and groups to
use as customized giveaways for 
employees, customers and communities 
(over 75% off list price provides 
minimum $4-to-$1 match on grants) 

• for K-12 schools and volunteers to use 
as a fundraising project (Ad Program,
Affiliate Program, Referral Program, 
and Traditional Fundraiser)

• for qualified Resellers to offer online
and in stores

• for individual purchase from Fedhealth
and bookstores nationwide and online.

Also available as a downloadable eBook, 
customized CDs (3 sizes), and 
customizable eBooks in bulk!

For more information, please
visit Fedhealth online at

www.fedhealth.net
or

www.itsadisaster.net

284 www.itsadisaster.net or call 1-888-999-4325



4th Edition
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...and  what  are  YOU

gonna  do  about  it?

IT’S    A
  D

ISA
STER!

IT’S    A
  D

ISA
STER!

Is your family or business really prepared for
a disaster or emergency?

Look inside to see how to ...
• Protect your family and property from natural disasters
• Prepare for Chem / Bio, cyber, or nuclear threats
• Reduce the spread of infectious diseases like avian flu
• Make a Family Emergency Plan with tips for kids, 

elderly and special needs family members, and pets 
• Assemble "Grab & Go" kits for home, car and office
• Plan for shelter, water purification, food preparation,

and sanitation 
• Apply basic first aid if help is not readily available
• Develop a Business Continuity Plan 

... plus lots of resources and much more!

BE AWARE... BE PREPARED... and HAVE A PLAN! 
This book may save your life!

A Disaster Preparedness, Prevention and First Aid Manual

Compliments of

District of Columbia 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management Agency

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Federal Emergency Management Agency

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
ADRIAN M. FENTY, MAYOR
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LET’S MAKE D.C. SAFE FROM FUTURE
DISASTERS THROUGH PREPAREDNESS,

PREVENTION AND PARTNERSHIP.

District of Columbia Homeland Security 
and Emergency Management Agency

2720 Martin Luther King Jr Avenue, SE  
Washington, DC 20032
Phone: 202-727-6161   http://hsema.dc.gov




